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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of SMS WATER GRACE MEDIWASTE MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SMS WATER GRACE MEDIWASTE
MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company"), which comprrse the balance sheel as at
31st March 2025, and the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income),
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other
explanatory information. (Hereinafter referred to as "the financial statements")

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 20'13 ("the
Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the lndian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (lndian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,as amended,("lnd AS") and other accounting principles
generally accepted in lndia, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and ils
Profits (including other comprehensive income), changes an equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the financial statement in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143( 10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the lCAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinionon the financial slatements.

lnformation Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report,
but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the financial stalements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the olher information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. lf, based on the work we have performed, we
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conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in thrs regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements
The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the

Act with respect to the preparation and presentation ofthese financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the lnd AS
specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness ofthe accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the frnancial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to conlinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relaled to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
lo do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. lvlisstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(1 0) of
the Act, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misslatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, orthe
override of internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
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' Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.
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. Evaluate the overall presenlation, structure and content of the financial statemenls, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user
of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report to the extent
applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. of the
accompanying financial statements.

(b) ln our opinion, proper books of accounl as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books

(c) The balance sheet, the slatement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) ln our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the lnd AS specified under
Section 1 33 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st lv'larch,
2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(0 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to frnancial
statements ofthe Company as on 31 l\ilarch 2025 and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure A. Our report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial
controls with reference to Financial Statements.
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related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequale, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.



(g) With respect to the other matters lo be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company as detailed in note 34(A) to the financial statements, has disclosed the
impact of pending litigation(s) on its financial position as at 31 March 2025

The Company did not have any long{erm contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 3'l March 2025.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the lnvestor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 l\ilarch
2025

iv. (a) The lr/anagement has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entity ("lntermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the lntermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities rdentified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiariesi

(b) The Ivlanagement has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign
entity ("Funding Parties"), wrth the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Fundlng
Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security orthe like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries: and

(c) Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the management representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March
2025.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software's for maintaining its books of account, which have a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective software. Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being
tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per lhe
statutory requirements for record retention.

(h) Based on our audit, we report that the Company has not paid or provided for any
managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16)
of the Act is not applicable.
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2 As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the
Central Government of lndia in terms of section 143(1'l) of the Act, we give in the
"Annexure B" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

to the extent applicable.

For V. K. Surana & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No.l10634W

Su h Galani
Partner
Membership No.'168192
Nagpur, August 07, 2025
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"Annexure A" To the lndependent Auditor's Report referred to in Paragraph 1(f) under
'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report of even date
to the members of SMS WATER GRACE MEDIWASTE MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
on the financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2025.

Report on the lnternal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statement under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section '143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statement of SMS
WATER GRACE MEDIWASTE MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company") as of
March 31, 2025 in conjunction wilh our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Managements and Board of Director's Responsibility for lnternal Financial Controls
The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial conlrols with reference to Financial Statements based on the
rnternal control over flnancial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia ("the
lCAl"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of lnlernal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants
of lndia and prescribed under section 1a3(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of lnternal Financial
Conlrols and, both issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to Financial Statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls wilh reference to Financial
Statements, assessing the risk lhat a malerial weakness exists, and lesting and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on lhe auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial slatements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to
Financial Statements.

Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements
A company's internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
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accountrng principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to Financial
Statements includes those policies and procedures thal (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transaclions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as

necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company, and (3) provide

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unaulhorized acquisition, use,

or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the flnancial
statements.

lnherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements
Because ofthe inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibillty of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
ln our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to
Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements
were operating effectively as at 31* March,2025, based on the criteria for internal financial control
with reference to Financial Statements established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstltute of Chartered Accountants of lndia.

For V. K. Surana & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Galani
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Su %UNI
Partner
Membership No. 168192
Nagpur, August 07, 2025
uDrN:25i6gt32gmKPEq 7s oo

o.



ii)

(a) (A)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment (including right of
use asset)

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets and accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The property, plant and equipment (including right of use asset) have been physically
verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification. ln our opinion, the frequency of physical veriflcation
programme adopted by the Company, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nalure of its assets.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties held by the Company (other than
properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly
executed in favour of the lessee and buildings created on lease premises) disclosed
in note 2 to the financial statements are held in lhe name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
right of use assets) during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988
(as amended) and rules made thereunder.

(a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals during the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification
by the management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate
for each class of inventory were noticed as compared to book records.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits by banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets at any point of time during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iixb) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has provided loans or advances in the nature of loans to its related
parties and others during the year as per details given below:

iii)

u

Particulars Loans
(Rs. ln lakhs

,\

"Annexure B" referred to in paragraph 2 under the heading 'Report on Other Legal &
Regulatory requirement' of our report of even date to the financial statements of SMS
WATER GRACE MEDIWASTE MANAGEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED for the year ended March
3',1,2025:

A statement on matters specified in paragraph 3 & 4 of the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order 2020 ("the order"), in terms of section 143(1'l) ofthe Companies Act,2013,

ln terms of the information and explanalions sought by us and given by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of
our knowledge and belief, we report that:

i)
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Aggregate amount granted/provided
durin the

(b) ln our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
investmenls made and terms and conditions ofthe grant of all loans and advances in
the nature of loans, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company, the
schedule of repayment of principal and the payment of the inlerest has not been
stipulated and accordingly, we are unable to comment as to whether the
repayments/receipts of principal interest are regular.

(d) ln the absence of stipulated schedule of repayment of principal and payment of
interest in respect of loans or advances in the nature of loans, we are unable to
comment as to whether there is any amounl which is overdue for more than 90 days.
Reasonable steps have been taken by the Company for recovery of such principal
amounls and interest.

(e) ln respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company, the
schedule of repayment of principal and interest has not been stipulated. According to
the information and explanation given to us, such loans have not been demanded for
repayment as on date.

(f) The Company has granted loans or advances in lhe nature of loans which are
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment, as per
details below:

Rs. in Lakhs

Outstanding As at 31st March 2025

Directors

433.44 100%

- Subsidiaries

- Joint Ventures

- Associates
'135 00- Related parties

Balance outstanding as at balance
sheet date
- Subsidiaries

- Joint Ventures

- Associates

433.44- Related parties
- Others

Promoler

K[/Ps

Type of Borrorer Amount of
oubtanding

loan Percelrtage to the
total Loans
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Other Party

Related Party

- Others.



iv) The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under section 185 of the Act.
As the Company is engaged in providing infrastructural facilities as specified in Schedule
Vl ofthe Act, provisions of section 186 except sub-section ('l) ofthe Act are not applicable
to the Company. ln our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of sub-section (1) of section 186 in

respect of investments, as applicable.

v)

vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Govemment under
sub.section ('l ) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities canied
out by the Company. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

vii)
a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is generally

regular an depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employee
State lnsurance, lncome Tax, Goods & Services Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and any
other statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. There were no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund,
Employees' State lnsurance, lncome Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom,
duty of Exclse, Value Added Tax, Cess and other materaal statutory dues in arrears
as at March 31,2025lor a period of more than six months from the date lhey became
payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred to in subclause (a) above that have nol been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute

viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the lncome Tax Act
1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.

ix) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does nol have
any loans or other borrowings from any lender. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

x) (a) The Company has nol raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertjble debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicabte.

(a) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and
fair view of the Financial Statements and according to the information and explanations
given by the managemenl, no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors
in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,

xi)

{a

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounls which are deemed to be deposits.
Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.
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2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation
made lo us by the managemenl of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

xii) The company is not a Nidhi company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the order is

not applicable.

xiii) ln our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 188 of the Act, where
applicable, for all transaction with related parties and details of related party transactions
have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards. Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not required to constitute an audit committee under section 177 of the Act.

xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is nol required
to and consequently, does not have an internal audit system as per the provisions of
section '138 of the Act Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

xv) ln our opinion, during the year the Company has nol entered into any non-cash transactions
with its Directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192
of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

xvi) (a) ln our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 4tlA of the
Reserve Bank of lndia Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) ln our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting
under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the currenl financial year as well as
the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii)

xix)

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the company during the year

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of flnancial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Direclors and Management plans and based
on our examination ofthe evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guaranlee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not meet
the criteria as specified under sub-section (1) of section '135 of the Act read with the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and according, reporting
under clause 3(xx) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of
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financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in
respect of said clause under this report.

For V. K. Surana & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No.1 0634W

Su Galani
Partner
Membership No.'168192
Nagpur, August 07 , 2025
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SUS WATER GRACE T,fIIDTEASTE UATAGETEITT PRIVATE LIUTTED
Bdencc rhcct er at 31lt f,rrch 2025

Paiicularg llote lYo.

I AASETS
1. Ifon-curr.eut errstr:
(a) Property, plant and equipment
(b) Capital work in progress
(c) Financial assests

(0 Other financial assets
(d) Deferred tax assets (Net)

(e) Other non-current assets
Total Non-currcat aa.ctt

Ar et
3l-fer-2S

As et
31-DIer-24

{ ir Lacs ( ln Lacr

2
3

4
5
6

31.86
11.00

9.28
r47.70

3.29

22.44
1l.OO

9.Ol
l07. I r

3.73
2o'?.L4 153.28

2. Cutrent usatr:
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial assets

(i) Investments
(ii) Trade receivables
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents
(1v) Bank ba-lance other than (iii) above
(v) Loans
("i) Other financial assets

(c) Current tax assets (net)
(d) Other current assets

Total current e!.cts
TOTALASSBIS

U EQTIITY AND LIABILITTES

1. Equltv:
(a) Equity share capital
(b) Other equity

Totd cqutty

2. Llabllltler:
2. I lfon+urrcat lhbilltlor:
(a) Financial liabilities

(il Lease Liabitties
tb) Provisions

Totrl I{oa-sutrent llabllltlor
2.2 Curcnt liebtlltter:
(a) Financialliabilities

(i) kase Uabilities
(ii) Trade pavables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro

enterprises and small enterprises
{b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other

than micro enterprises ald small
(iii) Other financial liabilities

(b) Other current liabilities
(c) Provisions

Total Currcnt Ltrrbtltder
Totd Llebllitlcr
T()trAL EQUTTT AXD IJABTLTTTES

7 36.77 LA.79

8
9
l0
l1
t2
13
14
l5

16

17

18
19

20
2L

22
23
24

DIN: 069

357.98
115.58

10.84
433.44

r.11
21.78
1o.16

50. l2
24O.20
87.36
15.44

269.89
11.11
13.42
8.37

987.6s 754.69
1,190.79 9()7.98

190.28
736.34

190.28
483.93

926.62 674.2r

t.24
15.75

1.58
L2.46
14.o4

o.34

22.67

142.51
80.71
o.96

0.31

o.29

1o.00

130.20
77.34

1.59
247.14 2t9.73
264.t7 233.77
t90.79 907.941

Material Accounting Policies 1

The accompanlng notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report ofeven date

FOR V. I(. SI'RAITA C CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. :110634W

\-.JP?^"/
CATfURESH GALAM
Partner (M.No.l68l92)
Nagpur, Dated 0 7 AUti ?0?5

sMs
and on behalf of the Board of

GRACE MEDISASTE
CIN : U521

of
PIIT LTD

PRABAL

UDIN z5t iglzBtn4?Eq Tzso

3074

JADON

03272644

16.99



SUS WATER GRACE TEDIWASTE UAJ|AGEUEIrT PRIVATE LIUITEI)Statcaeat of prolit ard lpr for tf,c yc*;t;31.t felch 2(Xls

Particular3

FOR V. K. SURAJTA & CO
Chartered Accountants \.'
Firm Registration No. :l

L Revenue from operations oEII. Other income
Itr. Totrl incomo (I+tIf 26

EXPEIYSES:

Direct Expenses 
2Zpurchases ofstock_in-trade 2gChanges in inventories ofstock_in-trade 29

Employee benefits expense 30Finance costs 
31Depreciation and amortization expense 32

Other expenses
rv. Total crocnrc 33

Y: 
pro0t/lfoar| befote tar (m-ry,

VI. Tar Erpcore:
Current Tax
Deferred Tax
Earlier year Income Tax

Totd Ter Erpenrcr
VII. Pro0t for tbc vcar lV-VIl

VII. Otber coaprchcnrlvc lncoac
ItGE. tt t rlll not bc reclesillcd to progt or looi) t'tet oain / fl,oss) on Remeasurement
defined Benefit plan

Income Tax relating to item that w.ill not
be classified to profit or loss

ii) Itemr thet r[l bG rcclerdf,cd to protrt or los
Net Gain /(loss) on Fair value chances of
Investment in Debt Instruments
Income Tax relating to item that will not
be classified to profit or [.oss

IYote lYo.

I
statements

Ycer cadcd
3l-frF26
t in kc:

695,20
34.7L

729.92

-

Year erded
3I-DIar-2+
t ln Lacs

704.45
18.07

722.52

2s8.27
il.27

(18.6s)
122.44

0.98
9.93

57.52

258.67
78.70
3.40

I 15.10
o.22
8.57

57.45
474.7?
255.15

42.44
(40.s6)

33.54
(33.87)

lo.02r
2.Oe

2s3.o7 2o,0.77

0.38

(0.10)

o.12

(0.8e)

o.23

Totelothcrcomprchenrivelacome I ltrl.sl(f,etofrar| 

-

E. Total comprehouive lncomo for thc ycar (VU+UIU 2]52.41

Earnings per equity share ofpar value of i
(l) Basic {Rs.)
(2)Diluted (Rs.)

Material Accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integrar part of the Iinancial
As per our report ofeven date

201.15
x.

40

13.30
r3.30

10.55
10.5s

GAIAI{I
Partner (M.No.l68l
Nagpur, Dated

,x
7 AU6 2025

and on behalf of tlle Board of Directors of
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DIN: 0691

sMs
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SUS WATER GRACE UEDTYA{ITE UAIYAGEUEI|T PRIVATE LIUITEDCaeh flow rtetenent for thc ycar ended 3lgt lf,arch 2O2S

Partlculars

Carh f,os ftom opcra+t-g acthdtlc!
Profit before tax

Depreciation & Amortisation E"p..r"."-
Finance Cost
Loss on sale of propert5r, plant & equipment
Account Write off / written back
Profit on Sale of investment
Interest income on fixed deposit receipts

Operating profit before working capital .h*g."
Movemcntr ln worHag capttal :

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables
Increase/{decrease) in other Current Financial Uabilities
Increase/ (decrease) in other Current Liabilities
Increase/ (decrease) in provision
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables
Decrease / (increase) in Other Non_Current Assets
Decrease / (increase) in other current assets
Decrease / (increase) in Inventory
Decrease / (increase) in Other current financial assets

Cath gcncretcd froa /lured ln) opcratlonr
Direct Tax paid/Adjusted

IIct cerh Oor &on/ (urcd int opcradag rctMticr lA)

Cerh flow fton invorttng ectdvltlec
Purchase of propert;r, plant & equipment, including intangible assets,
Capital work-in-progress and Capital Advance
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Fixed Deposit Receipts
Interest received
Mutual Funds purchased
Mutual Funds Sale
Decrease / (increase) in loans & Advances

IYct carh flow from/(uecd iaf acttvttler (Bf

Cerh f,ow from fanactag actlvldcr
Finance Cost

llct cash llow hom/lurcd tnf ln Eaencing ectMttcr lCf
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)

_ Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Carh aad carh cqutvelcatr at thc caA otthf ycer

Material Accounting policies

Ycer cndcd
31-U8r-2S
t irr Lecr

Ycar cndcd
31-Mar-24
t ln Lacs

255. I 5

9.93
0.98
0.02
4.45

(0.s0)
(s2 98)

237.06

200.42

4.57
o.22
o. ll
7.15

(33.s4)
(t.e?L

(10.3s)

{6.721
1.31

(50.00)

lo.22l

_(o23t
(67.9s)

12.37
12.31
3.37
2.34

l82.2s)
o.44

(1.80)
(t 7.e8)
10.00

(e.43)
I 1.15
3.44
3.95

93.65
(t.22!.

le.44l
4.20

1279.89l.
31.57175.90

{s1.69)
t24.21

(1e.38)
4.33

32.98

50.62

(0.98)
(o:gt
28.23

(l 63.55t
l95.OOl

1s5.28
87.33

The cash flow statement has been prepared as per indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting standard (IND-AS 7)

The accompanlng notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report ofeven date

FOR V. K. SURAI|A A CO
Chartered Accountants

and on behalf of the Board oft of
Firm Registration-No. : l l

\.u\4r'
".ffi*r^r,Partner (M.No. 168192)

F.R. qio.

,1u$;4W
GRACE UEDTWASTE

CIIY: U52 I

JADOIT

LTD

Nagpur, Dated 0 7 AUE 20?s DIN:0691
UDrN : 29 I 6fl ?z D nkfE 6 7 zoo

(1.31)
215.16

87.36
115.58

-



SUS WATER GRACE UEDIYASTE UAIfAGEITEIT PRMTE LIUITEDEtatcmcut of Changcr in Equfty

Pardculan tote lfo.

A. ECuigshare Capttal t6

Bdencc As at lrt April, 2O24
Changes in Equity Share Capital
Balancc As at Slat farch, 2O2S

Balaace A: at lrt April, 2O23
Changes in Equity Share Capital
Belencc As at 3lrt farch, 2O24

{ ia Lace
Aaount

190.28

190.28

190.28

19().28

B. Other Equity t7
t ln Iacc

Illaturc and putporc of Rctatacd ErrllDg
This reserve represents undistributed accumulated earnings of the company a.s on the balance sheet date
Material Accounting policies 

I

The accompanying notes are an integrar part of the linancial statements.

As per our report ofeven date

rOR V. K. SURAJ{A & CO
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. :llO634W

cA. GALAI{I
Partner (M.No. l68l
Nagpur, Dated 'fh nuo zoru

F.R.tlo.
r10634W

*
*.

For and on behalfofthe Board of ofsus TER GRACE UEDTYASTE
CIII: U52 1Prc213882

SIITGH JADOIT

DIN : O69l
03272644UDIN : LS) 6b 1 zg fYlry p E E Tzeo

Rcrcrvr a.ad
Suqrlur

Othcr
Compreheanive

Iocorncp8rticrrlAra

Rcaearurcraent
dcfiacd Bcncftt

plan

Totd

Balance a: at lrt 2o.24 74 1.19 .93for the 253.O7 253.O7income for the
20125a8Balaacc 3at 1Et

53
Balaace as at ltt 2023 281.96 o.82 242.7afor the 200.77 200.77Other com income for the o.37

2o24Balancc as at 91 st 4A2.74 r.19 483.93

I

I

Rctalncd Eandog

(o.661
735.81 736.34

0.37



AXS WATER GRACE UEDIWA8TE UAIIAGEUEXT PRIVATE IIIITEDIfotcr to llaanclel rtetcmcatr for tlo ycar cadod Ctlt ferch 2O2S

rl f,atcrld AccorT TrrG FoLtcIDa ArD rolEa noRulrc pARr oF THE Accourfrs As ar 3rrt ,ARCH 2o2E
U Corooratc lnformaflon

sMS water Gracg-Me{iwaste Management hivate Limited is a. kivate_Limited a company domiciled in India andIncorporated on 22nd' Feb 2ol I und-er the provision Ja;;;;...Act. It is a subsidiar5r company of sMS EnvocareLtd' The company is in the business of manageme.rt J ilo-.aical 
-waste managemlnt & disposal service. Thecompany provides solutions for scientific treaf,nent a" aop"""r of bio medicJ;;;;. by the latest ecofriendlytechnologies.

IIf Badr ofprcoeretloa
!l Coraoltaaco rlth II|D AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Ind.ian Accounting standards(hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS-) as noified ty lli"i"t.y of corporate Affairs pursuant to section 133 of
ff."?fr'ffi?*"i;.,?l*Ji:ilr;:11#:x."i"r 6"*0"';. nndian A;;;ti"; standards) nues,iois as

The accounting policies are applied consist*rtly to all the periods presented in the linanciar statements, exceptwhere a newly issued accounting standard- is inltiatty *oi.o or a revision to .r, .*i"tirrg accounting standardrequires a change in the accounting policy hitherto iri use.-
Ul HlrtorlcelCortConvcadoar

The Financial statements have been prepared on historicar cost basis.
tut

company has determined current and non-current classification of its assets and liabilities in the financia.lstatements as pcr the requirement of Ind AS l- 'Presentation of Financial statements', wherever applicable.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the company,s normal operatingcycle (twelve months)and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act.
iSl Rouadlas oltof Amouatr

All amounts disclosed in financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per therequirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

IIl0 Ure of Ertloetcr eld Judscuent
The preparation of Enancial statements in conformitSr with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments,estimates and assumptions t].at aflect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and thedisclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end_of the reporting *n*. The estimates and judgements used in thepreparation of financial statements are continuously evalua"ted by the company and are based on historicalexperience and various ottrer assumptions and factors (ir,"il;; expectations of future events) that the companybelieves to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Dderences between actual results and estimates arerecognised in the period in which the results are known/materialised. The said estimates are based on the facts andevents' that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred after that date but provide additional evidence aboutconditions existing as at the reporting date.
The areas involving estimation of uncertainty and judgement at the date of the financial statements, which maycause a materia-l adjustment to the carrying 

"rnorr,t" of assets and tiabilities within the next financial year givena) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
b) Current Tax payable
c) Valuation ofdeferred tax assets
d) Fair value measurement of financial instruments
e) Defined Benefit Obligation
fl hobable outcome of matters included under contingent Liabilities
d Revenue Recognation

Detailed iaformation about each of these_ estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together withinformation about the basis of calculation for each alfected-line-item alfected in finacial statements.
g Uatcrld Accoundnr pottctcrl
d Propcrtv Plaat aad Eouloncnt
lf Rccognltlon & Mcerutcacat

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation and impairment, if any. Historicalcost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Advances paid towards acquisition of property plant & equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date isclassilied as capital advances under other non current assets and the cost of asset not put to use before such dateare disclosed under "Capital work in progress" Subsequent costs are included in the asset,s carrying amount orrecognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associatedwith the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carqring amount ofany component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance

fldn',
I 1 C6i4W

are charged to the Statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred. 4



SUS WATER GRACE IrEDIWASTE UAITAGEUEI|T PRTVATE I }IITED
Notes to llaaaclal rtatcmerti for the year ended 31rt Uarch 2O2S

il) Dcpreclation Ucthodr ulclhl llvcr elrd reddurl veluc
Depreciation is calculated on a vuritten down value basis over the estimated useful life of the assets as per provided
in Part C of schedule II of the company act 2Ol3 or remaining life of the project which ever is less.

The company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates
certain items of building, plant and equipment over estimated useful lives which are same as the useful lifeprescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes t1.at these estimated useful lives
are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

Useful life considered for calculation of depreciationfor various assets class are as follows-
Asset Clesa Useful Llfe
Building 30 Years

t and Equipment l5 Years
Furniture aad Fixtures l0 years

Equipments 5 years
Vehicles 8 Years
Computers 3 years

An item of property, plant and equiprnent and any Material part initialy recogrrized is derecognized upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition/
disposal of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

Residual value of the asset is considered at o.2@/o of Gross Block of Asset.

Invogtmsnt tn Proocttlcs r
Property that is held for longterm rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the
Company, is classilied as investment property. Investment property is measured at its cost, including related
transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs less depreciation and impairment if any.

lntalgible A.sGt :-
Intangible assets acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated emortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Cost of a nonmonetary asset acquired in exchange of another non-monetary asset is measured
at fair value. Intangible assets are amortised over 3 years with written down value basis from the date t]:at they are
available for use.

Invcatoticr r
Inventories are valued at the cost or net realisable value whichever is lower . Cost comprise of all the cost of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to present location and condition. Cost formulae used
is Weighted Average Cost',. Due allowance is estimated and made for defective and obsolete items, wherever
necessa4r'.

cl Invcrtmcnt la subgldlerlcr. Partrcr.hlo 6re. Jobt vcnturcr ard A.soclatce
Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are recognised at cost as per Ind AS 27. Except where
investments accounted for at cost shall be accounted for in accordance with Ind AS lO5, Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations, when they are classilied as held for sale.

f) Calh E Carh Equtvdcnts
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and fixed deposits with original
maturity of three months or less which are subject to an inMaterial risk of change in value.

hl laarcr r
The company has applied Ind AS 116 using fJes msrlifisd retrospective approach and therefore the comparative
information has not been restated and continues to be reported under Ind AS 17.

Ar e lcsrcc :

The company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease clmmencement date. The right-of-use
asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore tJle underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to
the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or ttre end of the lease term.

The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and
equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for
certain re-measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liabitty is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest
determined, company's incremental borrowing rate.

rate implicit in the

bl

cf

dl

a

,l#o,i

that rate cannot be readily



SUS WATER GRACE UEDTWASTE UAITAGEUEI|T PRIVATE LIUITEI)
NotGs to Enancial statenGrts for the year ended 3lst March 2O2S

Generally, the company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. Iease palrments included in the
measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
- Fixed pa5ments, including in-substance fixed pa5rments;
- Variable lease pa5rments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the com:

- Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and
- The exercise price under a purchase option tiat the compaay is reasonably certain to exercise, lease pa5rments in
an optional renewal period if the company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for
early termination of a lease unless the company is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the elfective interest method. It is remeasured when ttrere is
a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the company,s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if company changes its
assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

W'hen the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carr5ring amount of
the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to ztro.

Short-term leases and Ieases oflow-value assets;
The company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of real estate
properties that have a lease term of 12 months. The company recognises the lease palrments associated with these
leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Under Ind AS 17 :

In the comparative period, as a lessee the company classiEed leases that transfer substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership as finance leases. When this was the case, the leased assets were measured initially at an
amount equal to the lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease pa5rments. Minimum lease
payments were the Payments over the lease term that the lessee was required to make, excluding any contingent
rent.

Subsequently, the assets were accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.
Assets held under other leases were classified as operating leases and were not recognised in the company,s
statement of financial position. Payments made under operating leases were recognised in profit or loss or, 

" "traight.line basis over the term of the lease. l.case incentives received were recognised as an integral part of the total lease
expense, over the term ofthe lease.

I*ases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially ail the risks and
rewatds incidental to the ownership of an asset to the Company. All other leases are classilied as operating leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease's inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present
value of tJ..e minimum lease pa5rments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
borrowings or other financial liabilities as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated between the tiability a11d.
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

jl Flnencldlantnracatr:
lil fh.EeldArrct
U Ctra:sl0cetloa

The company classifies its financial Assets in the following measurement categories:
a) Those measured at amortised cost.
b) Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive or through

statement of profit and Loss), and
The classification depends on the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

2l lnltlel Rccoqnltlon end ncarurcmcat
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, transaction costs offinancial assets carried at fair value
through the Profit and loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit and [oss.

3) Subccqucutf,cerureoeat
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following :

af fbractrt e8crt8 at anottizcd cort
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a
business model with an objective to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in Enance income using the elfective interest rate ("EIR") method.. Impairment gains or losses
arising on these assets are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

'c)r &F.R

11C"



SUS WATER GRACE UEDTWASTE HAITAGEIf,EI|T PRIVATE TITf,ITED
NotGs to llaanclal statemeats for the yoar eaded 3lst farch 2O25

4

bl Ftnencial artctr.t frlr value through othcr courprchcanlvc lacome
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets
are held within a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely pa5rments of principal and interest on the principal arnount outstanding Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in the Statement of Profit and [oss.
In respect of equity investments (other than for investment in subsidiaries and associates) which are not
held for trading, tJle Company has made an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of such instruments in OCI. Such an election is made by the Company on an instrument by
instrument basis at the time of transition for existing equit5r instruments/ initial recognition for new equity
instruments.

cf fharctal arctr at feir yeluc thlough pro8t os loss
Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortized cost or
at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly
attributable to ttre acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are immediately
recognised in statement of profit and loss.

4l larelracnt of Flaeacld Agctr
In accordance with Ind AS 1O9, the Company applies the expected credit loss ("ECL1 model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and credit risk exposures. The Company follows
'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. Simplified approach
does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance
based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. For recognition of impairment
loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a
Material increasc in thc crcdit risk sincc initial recognition. If crcdit risk has not increased Matcrially, 12-
month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased Materially, lifetime ECL
is used. II, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
Material increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairrnent loss
allsu/an6s based on l2-mont} ECL. ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Sroup in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash
-l ^+a^ll-l5l Dc-rccornltlon of Flnanclrl Aretr
The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantia[y all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the
assets and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred linancial asset, the Company continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recop.ises a collaterpli?ed borrowing for the proceeds received.

fU Eoultv Inrtnrneat And Fhanctral Liabilltlog
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of
the contractual arrangements entered into and the defrnitions of a financial liability and an equig instrument.

ef E1"i[ In$nraeutr

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments which are issued for cash are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs. Equity instruments which are issued for consideration other ttran cash are
recorded at fair value of the equity instrument.

bl Fluracid Uebilitlcr
U Inttld rccognttton rnd Ue.rurGnetrt

Financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in case of borrowing and payables, net of
directly attributable cost.

2l SubrcqucntmcasurGmeat
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using ttre effective interest method, except
for contingent consideration recognized in a business combination which is subsequently measured at fair
value tlrough pmfit or loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet
date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

3l Dc-rccogntttonofFlnenclel Lirbt[tic!
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substandally modifred, such an
exchange or modilication is treated as de-recognition of the original liability and recognition of a new
liability. The difrerence in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.,/b



8U8 WATER GRACE UEDTWASTE IAITAGEUEI|T PRIVATE LITITED
NotGt to llaanclal rtatomcntr for the year eadcd 3lct Xerch 2O25

4l Ofiecttiag fheaclal Llabiliticr
Financial assets and financial liabilities are olfset and the net €rmount is reported in the Balance Sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legat right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis to rea-lise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

lf Inoelnncat of lfon-Flnelclal Agcte:
The Company assesses at each Balanc.e Sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset, including
intangible asset, may be impaired. If any such indication exists, t}re company estimates the recoverable amount of
the asset. If such recoverable amount of thc asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which
the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying €unount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The
reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the Profit and l.oss Account.

Rccoverable aoouat lr dctcrmlaed:
- In case of an individual asset, at the higher of the assets'fair value less cost to sell and value in use; and

- In case of cash generating unit (A group of assets that generates identified, independent cash flows), at
the higher of cash generating unit's fair value less cost to sell and value In use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money aad risk specified to the
asset. In determining fair value less cost to sell, recent market transaction are taken into account. If no such
transaction can be identifred, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and [oss, except for properties previously revalued with the reva]uation taken to OCI. For
such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to ttre amount of any previous revaluation. When the
Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovcry of the asset, the relevant amounts are
written ofr. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, then t}le previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through the Statement of Profit and [-oss.

kl Borroslaer:-
Borrowings are initially recognised at net of transaction costs incurred and measured at amortised cost. Any
dilTerence between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

U Provlstoa!. Contlpscat LtsbllttlGt.!d Coattpscrrt Arrct*
A provision is recognized when the company has the present obligation (legal and constructive) as a result of past

events, for which it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are reviewed r€gularly and are adjusted where
necessary to reflect the current best estimate of the obligation. When a company expects provision to be reimbursed,

the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when reimbursement is virtually certain.

A disclosure of contingent liabilities is made where there is possible obligation or present obligation that may

probably not require an outflow of resources. When there is possible or a Present obliga.tion where there is likelihood

of outflow of resource is remote , no provision or disclosure is made.

Contingent Assets are not recognized in the financial statements.

Provisions, Contingent Asset & Contingent Liabilities are reviewed regularly and are adjusted where necessary to

reflect the current best estimate of the obligation.

ml RevenueRecor:nltlon:
The Company earns revenue primarily from Bio Medical Waste Disposal Services and allied activities including

trasportadon of Bio Medical waste.

Effective April l,2Ol8, the Company has applied Ind AS ll5 "Revenue From Contracts urith Customers'which
establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be recognised'

lnd AS ll5 replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue and Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts. Company did not have contracts

that were not iompleted as of Aprill,2Ol8. The impact of the adoption of the standard on the financial statements of

the Company is in Material.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted lor volume discounts,

service level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives, ifany, as specified in the contract with

the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes coUected from customers'

Revenue has been recognized on accrual basis at the time of receipt of "Bio Medical Waste".

Membership fees are recogni"rd as income over the period of membership on pro rata basis.

:a,",,
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Iilotor to Baancial etatemeate for the year eadcd 3lst Uarch 2O2S

nf G'overnncnt Graatt :-
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the company will comply with all attached conditions.
Government grants relating to the purchase of propert3l, plant and equipment are included in capital resewe as
deferred income and are credited to Profit and Loss on a written down value basis over the remaining period of the
project and presented within other income.

of Forcign curcacs Ttln8Ltion :-
if Fuactloaal and prcrcatatioa curcucv r

The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INRI, which is Company's functional and presentation
curTency.

fil Transectloaraldbaleaccs r
Transactions in foreign currencies are recognised at the prevailing exchange rates on the transaction dates.
Realised gains and losses on settlement of foreign curency transactions are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Inss. Monetary foreiSn currency assets and liabilities at the year-end are translated at the year-end
exchange rates and the resultant exchange differences are recognised in the Statement ofProfit and Loss.

pl Borowlnr Cortr r
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production ofan asset that necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use as part of the cost of asset. All other borrowing costs are
expenses in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entit5r incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Sl Tarcc on Incooc:
l| Currcnt Tar:-

The income tax expensc or credit, ifthere is any for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate as per Income tax Act 1961. Current Income tax assets and
liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

tll Dcfcrcd Ter:-
Deferred income tax is provided in fi.rll, using the Balance sheet approach method on temporary dillerences
arising between the tax bases of assets and tiabilities and their carrying amount in the financial statement, if
there is any. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are exceptd to apply when the related deferred
income tax assets is realised or the deferred income tax liabitty is settled. Deferred tax assets are recognised
for all deductible temporary dilferences and unused tax losses, only rf, it is probable that future taxable
amounts will be available to utilise those temporary difierences and losses.

rl Emplovcc Bcacfitr:-
tl thort-tcrm obllretlonr -

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in
respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

Lcave Encathmcat
The leave obligations cover the Company's liability for sick, casual and earned leave. The Liabilities for sick and

casual Leave are treated as current liabilities since there is no policy for ttre payment of these liabilities and

right to avail these leave expires within 12 Months. The liabilities for eamed leave are classified as non-current,
however no discounting is done for these as comparry expects the discounting rate and salary increase rate to

be similar i.e 60/o.

ftl Port-caplovment obllgrtloar r
Thc Comos[v opcratG. thc tollosbt Do.t cnolovBcat tcbcmcr:
a) Defined benetit plan such as gratuity; and
b) Delined contribution plan such as provident fund'

GretuitY obllratlons
The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect ofdefined benefit gratuity plans is the present value

of the defined benefit obf,gation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets' The defined

benefit obligation is calculalted annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method'

Thc present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash oudlows

by reference to market yields at the end of th-e reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating

to the terms of the related obligation'

The net interest cost is calculated by applyng the discount rate to the net balance of tlle defined benefit obligation

and the fair value of ptan assets' This cost is employee

Ioss
a

'r{at,

beneflt expense in the Statement of Profit and
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Noter to llnancial stetcnenta for the ycar endcd 31ct ferch 2O25

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are

recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained
earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Provldent Fuad
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The company has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. Contributions are made to provident fund in India for
employees as per regulations. The contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the
government. The company recognizrs contribution payable to t.Ile provident fund scheme as an expense, when an
employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the
balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to ttre scheme is recognized as a
liability after deducting the contribution a.lready paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due
for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset.

rl Ecgmcnt Rcoottlng r
The Board of Directors of the Company constitute the Chief Operating Decision Makers fCODM") which allocate
resources to and assess the performance of the segments of t}re Company.

Eerainsr Pcr Shrrc:

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing ttre prolit for the year attributable to equity holders of the company by

the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the company by the

weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity
shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shar€s.

l
it
t

F.R.No.fw



S}ls WATER GRACE MEDIWASTE MAIIAGEUEITT PRTVATE LIMITED
lYotcc to flaanclal statcmcnt! for thc year endcd 31ct !fiqrch 2025
2) Proportv. plant end oqulpmoat

t ln Lacc
Partlcularg Lcacehold Land Butlding Plant qnd

Equlpmcntc
F\rrnlture

and
Vehicles Olflce

Equlpmcat
Computers Total

Grou CarrYfng 'molrnt
Ar at 1rt A9rll2O24
Additions
Disposals
Ar et 31gt Msrch 2O25

As et 1ct Aprll 2023
Additions
Disposals
Ar at 3lrt Mareh 2O24

Accumulated Depreciatlon
Ar at lrt Aprtl 2O24
Charge for the year
Disposals
Ar at 3lrt Marcb 2O25

Ar at 1lt Aprll2O23
Charge for the year
Disposals
Aa at 3lrt March 2O24

lfet Carrylng Amouat
Ar at 3lrt March 2O25

As at 3lrt March 2O24

2.42 95.96 116.81
L8,97

1(}.o1

3.73

4.4
o.38
o.09

6.92 2N.06
19.38
3.82

2.42 95.95 135.78 3.53 6.24 4.72 6.92 255.61

2.42 95.96 I 7
1

2

73
58
50

3.32
0.2s
0.07

4.32
5.70

4.60

0.16

6.94
o.t2
0. l4

235.28
7,65
2.87

2.42 95.96 116.81 3.50 10.o1 4.4 6.92 240.06

2.4t
o.o1

86.20
r.70

109.50
5.10

3.O2
0.l8

5.51
2.44
3.72

4.19
0.39
0.09

2r7.62
9.93
3.81

2.42 87.90 114.60 3.2t 4.25 4.50 6.90 224.75

2.26
o.15

84.14
2.06

108.31
3.63
2.44

2.98
o.t2
o.o7

4.27
1.24

3.60
o.70
o.10

6,27
0.66
0.14

211.81
8.57
2.75

2.4L 86.20 109.50 3.O2 s.51 4.L9 6.79 2L7.62

o.oo a.o7 2r.18 o.33 2.O4 o.23 o.o2 31.86
o.oo 9.76 7.31 o.47 4.51 o.24 o.13 22.44

-,

3.50
o:*

6.79
0.l1

I

i



SMS WATER GRACE MEDIWASTE UANAGEIIEITT PRIVATE LIffiTED
I[otee to financld statemeats for the year ended Slst farch 2O2S

3f Caoltal Uork-In-Prorencs
Pre-operative expense for expansion ofplant

Total :

Capital Work in Progrccs ageing schedule : -

Uovsnent ln Capltal Wort-Ia-Prosress
Opening Balance
Additions
Capitalized
Closing Balance

4| Othcr lYoa{urrelt Fireocid As*ts
Fixed deposit with bank (remaining maturity of more than l2 month and kept as

margin money or securit5r against bank guarantee or other commitments)
Electricity Deposit

Totd :

A8 at
31-ilar-25

Ar et
31-llar24

{ la Lace < tn lace

11.0O I r.oo
11.(x) 1t.oo

3l-Dlar-25 31-Mar-24
{ ia [.acs t ln Lacr

11.OO 8.70
2.30

11.OO 11.OO

7.61

1.68

7.33

l.68
9.2A 9.O1

sl Deferred Assets llYetl

Project in Progress Lcg TLaa I
Year 1-2Year 2-3Year fore Thaa 3

Year Total
As at 3 I st March 2O25 2.70 3.80 4.50 I l.o0
As at 3 l st March 2024 2.70 3.80 1.80 2.70 I l.o0

Defcrred Tax Assets/ (Liabilitiec|
Ar at

31rt March,
20/24

Recognised Recognised
in P&L inOCI

A8 at
31st f,arch,

20.25

Diff in WDV of Fixed Assets
lcasing As Per IND-AS 116
Expenses

Bonus
kave Encashment
Gratuit5r
other ltems of OCI

Add:
MAT credit receivable

14.96
o.49

o.6s
1.08
2.58

-0.03

(0.s7)
(0.08)

(o.oo)
(o.33)
o.79
o.03

o.23

14.39
0.41

o.64
o.74
3.60

19.72 (0.16) o.23 19.79

87.38 40.52 t27.91
107.r1 40.36 o.23 147.70

Deferred Tar Auetr/ (Llabtlittes)
AB.t

31st Dlarch,
2023

Recognleed Recognteed
in P&L h(rcI

Ae at
31et farch,

20.24

Difr in WDV of Pixed Assets
Leasing As Per IND-AS 116
Expenses

Bonus
kave Encashment
Gratuity
otler Items of OCI

Add:
MAT credit receivable

6l Other non curreat aeretsr
Deposits with vendors/Authority
Prepaid Expenses

o.o4
0.36
a.74

0.65
l.08
2.58
(o.03)

15.62
o.52

0.60
o.72
1.94

(0.66)
(0.03)

14.96
0.49

(0.10)

{0.03)
19.40 o.45 {o.131 19.72

53.96 33.42 87.38
73.36 33.87 (o.131 107.11

As at
3l-Uar-25

A3 at
3l-Mar-24

{ in Lacr t ln Lact

2.lo
1.19

2.lo
1.63

F.R..No.

uffiaw
Total : s.29 3.73



SDIS WATER GRACE }IEDTWASTE UAIIAGEUEITT PRryATE LIIITED
Ifoter to f,nanclal etatement! for the year ended 3lgt Uerch 2O25

7l lavcntorlcr:-
(As taken, valued & certified by management at lower of Cost (Calculated on

weighted average basis) or Net Realisable Value)
Stores and Spares
Stock-in-trade

Totd:

Total :

Additioad lXscloeurc :

Aggregate value of quoted Investment at Cost
Agrregate value of quoted Investment at Market Value
Agrregate value of Unquoted Investment
Agrregate value of Impairment in value of Investment

9f Tradc rccclvablcg:-
Considered good - Unsecured

1Of Crrh aad cash eoulvdeatr :-
Cash on Hand
Balances with Banks in Current Account

(Note:- Cash and bank balance are held and denominated in Indian Currenry)
Total:

I U BsnL balanacc other than cash and cerh equiydeats :-
Fixed deposit with bank (Remaining maturity of less than 12 month and kept as

margin money or security against bank guarantee or other commitments)
Total :

As at
31-Uar-25

As at
31-tar-24

{ h Laca t to Lace

2.O7
34.70

2.74
16.05

s6.77 18.79

50.12

357.98

50. l2

28A.20

Total : 357.9E 28,O.20

Note : In the absence of due date of payment of all customer the ageing is given from the date of transaction

0.82
1t4.76

0.11
87.24

115.58 4736

10.84 t5.44

12| Curcnt Loaaa:-
Short tera loaas & Advanccr :-
Considered eood-Unsecured
Related partv :

Spark Mall & Parking Private Ltd
Veetrag Exploration & Minerals R/t Ltd

t
)
i

I
289.32
r44.t2

269.89

Total 433.44 269.A9

Note
1) The Company has Charged interest (@8o/o to Spark Mall &-Parking R/t Ltd and,7.lo/o to Veetrag Enploration &

Minerals kt Ltd.

As at Slst March 2O25 Legr thaa 6
Months

6 foathe to
I yeet

1-2 yearr 2-3 yeart More then 3
ycarr

Totel

l) Undisputed Trade
receivables -
considered good -
Unsecured

r99.82 51.28 68.59 14.43 23.86 357.98

Total L99.82 s1.28 68.59 14.43 23.86 3S7.98

As at 31at March 2O24 Lecs t'h.! 6
fonthe

6 foathg to
I ycer

1-2 yeare 2-3 ycen Iorc tts! 3
yca't

Totd

l) Undisputed Trade
receivables -
considered good -
Unsecured

A7.A 58.00 43.53 2t.t4 9.72 280.20

Totd 147.A2 58.OO 43.53 21.14 9.72 24O.20

8l Currolt Invertaent*
Edelweiss Liquid Fund - Regular PIan Growth
(Investments in Mutual fund: Total Units : 1637.589, Cost : 50.00,

Fair Market Value : 50.12, Carrying Value : 5O. 12)

-

ffi



SMS WATER GRACE UEDIWASTE UANAGEUEITT PRIVATE LIUITED
I(otes to f,aanclal rtatemeats for the year eadcd 31at tarch 2O25

2) toans or Advances granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies
Act, 2O13), either severally or jointly with any other person, that are: {a) repayable on demand; or (b) without
speciffing any terms or period of repayment

T5rpe of Borrorcr

As at
31-Uar-25

Ac at
31-far-24

Amount of
loaa

out terdlag

Pcrccntage
to thc Totel

Loear

Anouat of
lo.-

out trndhl

Perccntagc
to thc Totd

Loanr
Promoter
Director
KMP'S

Related Parties 433 toooh 270 lOOo/o

3) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding
PartJfl with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identilied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
F\rnding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

4) All the Above loans and advaaces have been given for business purpose.

31-Mer-25 31-Uar-24
{ in Lacs t ln Lecr

13| Other current flnanclal asscts r
Earnest money deposit for tender"

Totd: 1.11 11.11
* Subject to Confirmation & Reconciliation

14) Curreat tar Asccts llfetl r
a) Income tax For Current Year

Advance Tax
Tax Deducted At Source
Less : Provision For Income Tax

Total :

151 Othcr Current asretr r
Statutory Dues :

GST paid on advance received from customer
Prepaid Expenses
Advance other than capital advance

Advance to supplier
Advance to employee

Total :

161 Equitv tharc Capttal r
Authorised Share Capital :

30,00,000 (3lst March 2024: 3O,OO,O0O) equity shares of par value of { 10/-
each

Issued. Subscribed and Fullv Paid Up share caoital :

19,02,800 (3lst March 2024: 19,O2,800) equity shares of par value of t lO/-
each

Totd:

55.00
9.22

(42.44)

35.61
I 1.35

(33.s4)
2r.74 t3.42

8.17
0.93

6.62
0.93

1.O2

0.05
o.24
0.57

10.16 a'37

300.o0 300.00

190.28 r90.28
19o.2a 190.28

Notes :

a) Terms/riehts attached to equity shares :

The company has only one class ofequity shares having par value of{ 1O per share. Each holder ofEquity shares
is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend
proposed by Directors is subject to the approval ofshareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
In the event of liquidation of the company the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets
of the company after distribution of preferential amount. The distribution will be in proportion to the no. of equity
shares held by the shareholder

Fi
110#a

l.1l ll.ll
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I[oter to financld rtatomeatr for the year oaded 31rt Uarch 2(Xl5

b) Reconciliation of the number of shares and the amount outstandins at the besinnins and end of the vear' :

3l-Usr-25 31-Uar-2+
I in Lacs t Lacr ? ln Lccr t ln Lacg

At the beginning ofthe year
Add : Issued during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year

19,O2,800 190.28 19,02,800

19,O2,8OO 190.28 19,O2,8OO

c) The details of the Shareholders holdinc than 5% of shares in the companv are
31-lIar-2S

190.28

19(,.2a

3l-Uar-24

(i) SMS Envocare Limited
(ii) Amit Nilawar

d) The details of the Shares held bv Holdine Comoanv :

(0 SMS Envocare Limited

1o,65,900
8,36,000

56.O2/o
43.94o/o

10,65,900
8,36,0O0

56.O2Yo

43.94o/o

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

10,65.900 56.02% 10,65,900 56.O2%

c) Detatls of Shareholdlng of Proaotcrs la the cornpa.ly aa uadca:

17f Othct Eouttv :-
(t) Retdaed Earalnr:

Balance as at beginning of Reporting period
Add : Profit for the year
Balance as at end of Reporting period

18f ltloa-Current Ieare Llabllier r
l,ease Liabilities as per IND-AS I 16

19) IYoa-Currcnt ProvLelong :-
Provision for Emplovee Benefits

Provision for gratuity
Provision for kave Benefits

2Ol Currcnt Iearc Liablllce r
kase Liabilities as per IND-AS 116

21f Trade Payabler:
Total outstanding Due to Micro & Small Enterprises
Total outstanding Other than Micro & Small Enterprises

Ar at
31-Uer-25

Ar et
3l-Uar-24

{ ln [8cs t ia Lacs

482.74
253.O7

281.96
200.77

Totd:

Totd:

Total:

Totd:

Total :

1.19
(0.66)

o.82
0.28
o.09

735.81 48.2.74

(llf Othcr Comorehcnjvc lacomc :
Balance as at Beginning of Reporting Period
Add : Items that will not bc reclassified to profit or loss (Nct of taxes)
Add : Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss (Net of taxes)
Balance as at end of Reporting period 0.53 1.19

736.34 4E3.93

1.24 1.58
L.24 1.58

12.90
2.85

9.22
3.24

15.75 t2.46

0.34 0.31
o.34 o.31

22.67
o.29

lo.oo

Promoter Name

Ft 202+25 FV 2023-24

I{o.of Shareg
7o ofTotal

Sharer

o/o Chaagc
Ilurlng thc

ycar
IYo.of Sharee

o/o of Total
Shercr

i6 Cho4gc
Durlng thc

yGar
SMS Envocare Ltd r0,65,900 56.O2Yo 0.00% 10,65,900 56.O2o/o o.o0%
Amit Nilawar 8,36,000 43.94o/" 0.o0% 8,36,00O 43.94yo o.o0%
Chetan Bora 900 o.o5% O.OOo/o 900 0.05% o.o0%
Total 19,O2,8OO 100.oo% o.oo% 19,O2,8(x) lO0.OOo/" O.O0o/o

0

F.

11t

Total : 22.67 10.30

xo.of sharcr 
o/o. 

fold-i+ ln 
No.of sherce 

o/o holding ia
tbc cl,els the clag

Ifo.of Bherer %.lold.lns h Iro.of shuu. 
o/oholdtng ln

the clag thc cleg



SMS WATER GRACE UEDTWASTE UAITAGEUEITT PRI1TATE LIUITED
I$otes to finaacial statcncats for the year ended 31rt terch 2O25

Ifote :

DUES TO MICRO AND SMALL ET.ITERPRISES
The Company has dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2OO6
(.MSMED Act'). The disclosure pursuant to the said MSMED Act is show below.

1) the principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of
each accountingyear;

2l the interest due on the principal amount remaining unpaid to any
supplier at the end ofeach accountingyear

3) Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED
Act, beyond the appointed

4l Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers
registered under ttle MSMED Act, beyond ttre appointed day during

5) Interest due and payable for the period delay in making payment
beyond the appointed day during the year, other than those specifed

6) the amount of interest accmed and remaining unpaid at the end of
each accounting year;

7) the arnount of further interest remaining due and payable even in
the succeedingyears,

Note : In the absence of due date of pa5rment of all purchases the ageing is given from the date of transaction

Ar at
31-ilar-2S

I in Lecr { in Lrcr

o.29

Ar et
3l-Xan24

22f Other Currcnt Flnenclrl Lhbtlittcr :

Salary Payable
Bonus Payable
Plant licence fees payable
Expenses Payable

23) Other Current Llebtltttca :

Starutorv Dues Payable
Tax deducted at source
Goods and Service tax
Employee state insurance corporation
Provident fund

Refundable to Customers
Advances from Customers

24f Current Provielonc :

Provision for Emolovee Benefit:
Provision for Grahrity
Provision for Leave Benefits

7.19
2.48

131.00
1.84

6.82
2.49

I19.00
1.88

Total :

Total:
67.O2

t42.Sr 130.20

{0.01)
11.37
o.22
2.to

o.24
16.99
o.23
2.08
2.58

55.20
80.71 77.34

0.96 o.70
0.89to->!

e' 1i
(L
t,

As et 31st March 2O2S
Lers Thal 1

Yoar
1-2 ycan 2-3 yorn More than 3

ycars TotaI

1) Outstandins dues to MSME
2l Others 22.6s o.o2 o.o2 22.67

Totd 22.63 o.02 o.o2 22.67

Ar at 31st Nlarch 2024 Lcer The.a I
Ycar 1-2 ycan 2-3 ycan [ore than 3

ycarE Total

l) Outstanding dues to MSME o.29 o.29
2l Others 9.96 o.04 t 0.oo

Total 1o.26 o.04 10.30

+
ll

Total : o,96 1.59



S}IS WATER GRACE }IEDIWASTE UAIYAGE}TEITT PRI1IATE LITITED
lYoter to tlnenclal statements for the year endcd 31ct Urrch 2O25

25f Revcnue from Oocratiou
(a) Sale of Services :-

Waste Treatment Charges
(b) Sale of products :-

Bags Sales
Scrap Sa-les

261 Othcr Inconc
Interest income on

Fixed deposit receipts
Income Tax Refund
Electricity deposit
On Unsecured loarr

Miscleneous Income
Profit on Sale of Investment

271 Dlrect Erpeancr
Consumption of Fuel
I-abour Charges
Vehicle Hire Charges
Electricity Expenses
Waste Disposal Charges
Repairs & Maintenance
Other Direct Expense
Consumption Of Spares & Tools
toading And Unloading Of Waste
Vehicle Fuel for Waste Collection
Sample Testing And Analysis Charges
ETP Operation And Maintenance
Consumption of chemicals

28f Purchaeer of Stocl,-ln-Tredc :

Bags and consumables

29f Chanter ln inventoriet ofStoct-la-Trrde:
Opening Inventorics:

Bags and consumables
Closinq Inventories :

Bags and consumables

YcarEadcd YcarEndcd
31-Urr-25 3l-U.rt-24
t in Laca { ln Lacr

490.38 434.1 5

157.68
47.14

234.26
36.04

Total: 695.20 7(}4.45

Notc:
l) The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers for the year ended March 31,

2025 by Nahre. The Company believe that this disaggregation best depict the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenues and cashflows which are affected by industry,market and other economic factors.

2l The company operates in one geographical location and its entire revenue is generated from India.
3) Amount from revenue from operations does not include Goods and Services Tax.
4l Revenue from operations includes only the gross increase in the economic benefits occurring to the entity on its

own account and does not include amount collected in capacity as a agent or on behalf of the third party.
5) Nosinglecustomerrepresentsl0Toormoreofthecompany'stotalrevenuefortheyearsended3lstMarch2O25

and 31st March 2O24.

1.26
o.49
o.09

31.72
0.66
0.50

1.31

0.15
o.o7

16.55

Total : 34.71 18.o7

Ifotc :

Interest income calculated using the effective interest method for linancial assets data measured at amortised cost

74.20
44.53
47.58
15.59
lt.67
5.49

21.28
5.1 1

1.44
2.53
2.58
2.OO

o.28

74.23
74.89
4+.45
15.72
15.34
12.54
6.46
6.39
2.71
2.38
r.75
1.74
0.08

Total :

Totel
64.27 78.70

235.27 25A.67

&.27 74.70

16.05

34.70

19.45

16.o5r t-'
=Ll-
(9

Totd: (18.6s) 3.40



SMS WATER GRACE UEDIWASTE UAITAGEUEI{T PRITIATE LIUITED
IYoter to financld rtatemeats for the year eaded 31gt tarch 2O25

3Of Eaolovec Bcncllt Erocatcr
Salaries & Wases:

Salaries and Wages
Bonus
l,eave Encashment
Gratuityt

Contribution to provident and other funds
StaffWelfare

3l) Ftnaace Corte
Interest on kase
[,atc payment of statutory dues :

Interest on late payment of GST
Interest on late payment of TDS

32| Dcpreclatloa hpenees
Depreciation of Tangible Assets

33! Otbcr Erocart
Licence Fees

Office Expenses
Accounts Written Off
Travelling Expenses/ Lodg.rg / Conveyance Expenses
Admin Vehicle Expenses
Administrative Expenses
Consultancy & Professional Charges
Pantry & Housekeeping Expenses
Insurance
Rent
Telephone Charges
Audit Fee

GST Expenses

Computer Repairs & Maintenance
Legal Expenses
Bank charges
Printing & Stationery
Other Expenses
Corporate Social Responsibilty
MCA / ROC Fees

loss on disposal of property, plant & equipment
Postage & Courier Exp

97.65
5. l9
3.O2
3.50

12.31
o.76

93.88
5.01
1.38
2.85

rl.li
0.86

Total: t22.4 115.10

Ifotc:-
Since the Gratuity is unfunded the same is clubbed under head Salaries & Wages as per the guidance note on

Division-ll IND AS of Schedule III to the companies act, 2013.

o. l9

o.69
o.l0

o.22

Total :

Total :

Total :

12.03
12.77
4.45
7.40
1.98
3.56
4.39
2.88
o.89
1.14
o.77
0.99
1.58

0.67
0.65
0.48
o.2t

12.03
9.33
7.15
7.30
s.88
3.56
2.62
2.44
l.o8
l.o7
0.99
0.99
0.78
o.62
0.4s
0.38
o.24
0.18

0.13
0.1 1

0.07

o.98 o.22

9.93 8.57
9.93 8.57

0.54
0.06
o.o2
o.o7

57.52 57.45

Ycar Ended Yoar Endcd
31-Mar-25 31-tar-24

( ln Lace I ln Lacg

!/
1

P./J



0.99 o.99

36f Related Paltv Tranractions
Ilst of related p.rtl6 ehGro coDtrol edrts and relrted partlcr wlth shom traanrctloan have trten
placo aad relationrhlp:
{al Holdlng Company

SMS Envocare Limited

(bl Kcy Menagencnt Pcrcond
1. Kishore Malviya- Director
2. Prabal Pratapsingh Jadon - Director

3. Aditya Nilawar - Director

(cl Othcr
Subeldlatr of Holdtar Co. tlltinrtc Holdlar Co.
Butibori CE"IP hrt Ltd SMS Ltd.
SMS Water Grace Enviroprotect F/t Ltd
SMS Waluj CE"TP Rrt Ltd Jolnt Vcaturcr of llltlmrte Holdlnr Co.
Envotech Waste Maaagement Ltd SMS Infrastructure Ltd. & D. Thakkar
Enviroprotect Waste Management Ltd Construction Rrt. Ltd. JV
SMS Greentech Art Ltd Shaktikumar M. Sancheti Ltd. & S N Thakkar
Ponda Envocare Ltd Construction Art. Ltd. JV
Maharashtra Enviro Power Limited Sanbro Corporation
SMS Envoclean FVt. Ltd. Saket- SMSIL (JV)

sMS Water Grace BMW Pvt. Ltd SRRCIPL SMSL {JV)
Western Integrated Waste Management Facility Rrt Ltd SRRCIPL- SMSL Gfv)-Mahbubnagar
Nilawar Watergrace Waste Management Rrt Ltd. SMSLMBPL JV Durg package-A

SMSIL KTCO (JV)

Subddlerw of Illtlnetc Boldtas Co. Bhartiya SMSIL (JV)

SMS Mine Developers Pvt. Ltd. SMS Infrastructure Ltd. Shreenath Enterprises J.V
Spark Mall and Parking Pvt. Ltd. AGIPLSMSIL gV)
SMS Taxi Cabs Pvt. Ltd. GSJ Envo Ltd- In consorLium with SMS
SMS lnfolink Frt. Ltd. Infrastructue Ltd.

SMS WATER GRACE UEDTWASTE UAI|AGE}IEIIT PRIVATE LIUITED
Note. to finoncial atatements for the ycar caded 3lrt Uerch 2O25

34f Contingcnt Llabilitles. Gurantees. Continsent Assets & commltmcnts

(i) Claims against Company not acknowledge as Debt
(ii) Commitments

a. Capital Commitments
b. Revenue Commitments

(iii) Contingentassets

35) Pavmeat to Audltorr
Audit fee (Excluding Taxes)

31-IUsr-25 31-tar-24
t la Lecs t ln Lacs

1.65 o.50

0.99 0.99

SMS Infrastructure Ltd - Aarti Infra-Projects kt.
Ltd. J.V.
SMSILMBPLBRAPL (JV)

GDCT.SMSIL (JV)
SMSLSRRCIPL (JV)

SMSILMBPL (JV)

Meghe SMS Health Sciences Consortium (Spv)

SRRCTPL-SMSLBEKEM (.rV)

ladlvlduelr hevinz f,atcrld Intruclcc & thelr
Eatcrorlcrer
Ajay Sancheti
Anand Sancheti
Paramveer Sancheti
Akshay Sancheti
San Finance Corporation ( Partnership Firm)
Amit Nilawar

SMS Tolls And Developers Ltd.
SMS Vidyut R/t Ltd.
SMS-AABS lndia Tollways Private Limited
PT. SMS Minerals Intemational
SMS Mining Limited
Ayodhya Gorakhpur SMS Tolls Pvt. Ltd.
SMSL Ketki MDO Project Limited
SMS Waste Management h/t. Ltd.
PT. SMS Mines Indonesia
SMS Hazardous Waste Management hrt Ltd

/lrsoctretcr of llltlmatc Holdiag Co.
RCCL Infrastructure Ltd.
SMS AAMW Tollways F/t. Ltd.

1

,o
- F.0.

$



SMS WATER GRACE UEDIWASTE UAITAGEUEITT PRIVATE LIUITED
Notes to llnancid statements for the yeer ended 31rt Merch 2O25

(dl Transactions crrrlcd out rlth rclatcd partiee

37) Emplovcc Benclit ObHgatlons :
U Gratuitv Obligatioa

t ln L.ca

A. Amouat in thc Balencc Shcet

B. fovement:ln plan esictr aad plaa liabilltlor
There are no plan assets & liabilities since thc obligation is not fundcd.

C. Anount ln the Statcment of Proflt aad losa es

D. Amount in the Etateaeat ofProfit and Lors ae Othet

E. in Precent Value of

Beaeflt

Iacome

Naae of Releted perty Ifaturc
of Traneectlonr Year Ended

Relatcd Parties
Rcfcred ln (al Rcfened ln (bl Rcferrcd in (cl

Purchase of Materia-l & Services
3l-Mar-25 2.66
3l-Mar-24 1.68

Sale of Material & Services
3l-Mar-25
3l-Mar-24

Interest Expense
3l-Mar-25
3l-Mar-24

Interest income
3l-Mar-25 3t.72
3l-Mar-24

Loan repaid /written-off during
the year

3l-Mar-25 58.00
3l-Mar-24 86.26

Loan accepted during the year 3l -Mar-25 58.00
3l-Mar-24 246.45

Loan given during the year 3l-Mar-25 135.00
31-Mar-24 269.89

Deposit & Advances Received
3l-Mar-25
3l-Mar-24

Deposit & Advances Paid
3l-Mar-25
31-Mar-24

Outstandin g Balances included
in assets ([oan]

3l-Mar-25 433.44
3l-Mar-24 269.89

Outstanding Balances inclued in
liabilites

3l-Mar-25
3l-Mar24

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24Partlcular { h Lscr { ln Lrcs
(Present Value of Benefit Obligation) 9.92 7.45
Fair value ofplan assets
Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit)) 3.94
I{et lLiabilityl/Aget Recognized in thc Balaacc Shect 13.86 7.45

Parttculare 3l-Mer-25 31-Mrr-24
t ln Lecc t in Locs

Service Cost 2.78 2.30
Net Interest Cost 0.72 0.55
IIet lmpect on thc Pro8t / (Iars) bcforc tar 3.50 2.8s

Particutan 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
t ia Lecr t ln Laca

Actuarial (Gains)/lnsses on Obligation For the Period o.77 (o.38)
Ifet (Income)/Erpcnee For the Perlod Rccosnized in OCI o.77 (o.38)

31-Mar-25 31-Uar-24Particular t ln Lace t in Lacs
9.92 7.45Opening of defined benefit obligations

Service cost 2.78 2.30
lnterest Cost o.72 0.55

t0.33)Benefrt Paid
Actuarial (Gainl/lpss on total liabilities o.77 (o.38)

- due to chonge in financial assumptions o.46 (0.0r)
- due to change in demographic assumptions ./s$ry4CX

0.31 (0.s1)- due to experience variance /s:/ \o.I
9.92o 13.86of defiaed beneflt



SDTS YATER GRACE UEDIWASTE UAI|AGE}IEITT PRIVATE LIUITED
Noter to flaancld stateoentr for the ycar endcd 31st Usrch 2O25

F. Alsumptloao
The assumptions under Ind AS 19 are set by reference to market conditions at the valuation date. The

Material actuarial assumptions were as follows:

Particulars
31-Urr-25 31-Mar-24
t in Lacr t ln [,acs

Expected Return on Plan Assets N.A

Rate of Discounting 6.64V" 7.21o/"

Rate of Salar5r Increase 8.00%

Withdrawal rate 14.73o/o 14.73o/o

Mortality Rate lOO % of IALM 2Ol2-L4
Average future service (in Years) 26.25 Years 27.39 Years

c. Soartttvtty Aadptr
The sensitivity of the deflned benefit obligation to changes in the weighted key assumptions are:

Note:-
1) The base liability is calcu lated at discount rate of 6.64 7o pe r annum and salary inflation rate of 8.OO

7o per annum for all fuhrre Years.
2l Liabilities are very sensitive to salary escalation rate, discount rate & withdrawal rate

3)

Liabilities are very less sensitive due to change in mortdity assumptions. Hence, sensitivities due

to change in mortality are ignored.

H. The deflned beneflt obllgatioar rhdl anture efter year cad 31rt farch, 2o.24 ts follors:

ProJected Bcnef,t Obllgattoa Payable ia foturc Yeera fror the date
of

31-Mar-25 3l-Ul*24
t ln l,aca t ln Lacr

1st Year 0.96 o.70

2nd Year 1.79 0.77

3rd Year 1.69 r.34

4th Following Year 1.63 t.26

Sth Following Year 1.51 r.20

After Sttr Year 15.28 12.19

38t Flnracld rlrl meleremcnt oblcctlvc aad pollclcr :-

-Th. 
Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans arrd borrowings, trade and other payables and

financial gr.."rrt.. contracts The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's

operations and to provide guErantees to support its operations. The Company's principal financial assets

include loans, 11.ade and other receivables, clurent investment and cash and cash equivalents ttrat derive

directly from its operations. The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The

Company,s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company's senior management

ensures that financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial

risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's po[cies and risk objectives.

The senior management reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised

below:

Uarket rlrl r
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three t5pes of risk: interest rate risk,

currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments

alfected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits etc'

Intercrt Rete Rlrlr
Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows with respect to interest payments on borrowings

will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The company's exposure to the risk of changes

in market interest rates relaltes primarily to t}le Company's long-term debt obligations wittr floating

interest rates, however ttre company does not have any long-term debt obligation with floating interest

rl

Particulars
31-Mar-25 Inpact

lAbsolutel Impact o/o( ln Lacs
Base Liability 13.86

lncrease Discount Rate by 0.50% 13.45 (0.41) -2.93o/o

Decrease Discount Rate by O.5Oo/o 14.29 0.43 3.llo/o
lncrease Salary lnJlation by 1.O0o/o 14.73 o.87 6.28o/u

Decrease Salary lnllation by l.OO7o 13.07 (0.7e) -5.68%

lncrease Withdrawal Rate by l.Ooo/o 13.70 (0.16) -l.l9o/"
Decrease Withdrawal Rate by LqQ% 14.03 0.17 L.26"/o

rates

ffi



SMS WATER GRACE UEDIYASTE UAI|AGEUEIIT PRTVATE LIMITTD
l{oter to financial statementr for the yeat cnded 3lrt ferch 2O25

Forclgn Currcncy Riak :-
The company does not have any foreigrr currency risk exposure.

Otler Hcc RieL r
The company has not made any investment in equity securities hence no exposure

Ul Crcdtt Rllk :

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligations under a hnancial instmment or a
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating
activities (primarily trade receivables & financial guarantees). The company measure the expected credit
loss of trade receivable based on historical, trend, industiral practices and business environment in
which the entity operates. Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience and business experience,
loss on collection of receivables is not material hence no provision considered.

a) Rccelvablc

Partlculers 31-Mar-25 31-Uer-24
t ln l"ace a ln Lacs

1-9O days past due 118.04 108.18
91 to l8O days past due 81.78 39.63
More than 180 days past due 158. r 5 r32.38
Totd 357.98 28'O.20

bl Eluauclal Guaraatee

Particulerg 3l-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
a ln l,ec. t ln Laca

Bank Grurantee 3.58
Total 3.s8

illl Ltquldtty RtrL :

objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of cash
credit facility and bank loans. Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to
settle or meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable price. The Company's corporate treasury
department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settl€ment management. In addition, processes
and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management.

(it Pattern of { ln Lacr

(ttf Uaturtty Pattcrns of Othcr Flaaacld Liebllttlcs
t ln L.cr

Bcyond 5 yeara TotdA^s at 31et Harch, 2O25
O-1 Years 1-5 ycarr

long Term borrowings( Including
Current Manturity of [.ong term
Short Term Borrowings
Totd

As at 31rt U,arcb,2024 Gl Ycara 1-5 years Beyond 5 yeara Total

Current Manturity of long term
Debt)
Short Term Borrowings
Totd

As at 31rt March, 2O25 O - 6 months G12 months
Bcyond 12

nonthr Total
Trade payables 22.62 o.o2 o.04 22.68
Other Financial Uabilitv L42.5L t42.51
Total 165.13 o.o2 o.04 165.19

Beyond 12
noathc TotrlO - 6 montha 612 rnonthsAr at 31et farch, 2O24

10.30 10.30Trade payables
130.20Other Financial Liabilitv 130.20

\r{4.r\ 140.49140.49 .1e$BTotd

/\
J)

o-(,



SMS WATER GRACE UEDIWASYIE UANAGE}TEITT PRIVATE LIUITED
Notes to linanclal statemerts for the year eaded 31gt U.rch 2O25

39f Caoltd Menagcncnt
For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equit5r capital, securities
premium and dl otJrer equity reseryes attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the
Company's capital m€rnagement is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company's capital management objectives are to maintain equity including all reserves to protect
economic viability and to finance any growth opportunities that may be available in future so as to maximise
shareholders' value.

The management and the board of directors monitors the retum on capital as well as the level of dividends to
the shareholders. The Company manages its capita.l structure and makes adjustrnents in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Partlculam 31-far-24
{ ia Lacs

31-il.r-25
t ln l,ac!

Borrowings
Trade payables
Other payables
less: cash and cash equivalents

22.67
r42.51

(1ls.s8)

10.30
130.20
(87.36)

IYet debt 49.59 53. l3

EquiW 926.62 674.21
Total

!et

4Of Eernings Per Shere:

IIct pto8t for celculatlon of bertc EPS
Net profit as above
Efrect of dilution
Ifct proflt/llorll for calculatlon of diluted EPS

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EpS
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted Ep

Earntngt pcr cqutty rharc:
Basic
Diluted

411 Rccoaclltetloa of Comprchcnrlvc lacouc

Total Comprehensive as per audited frnacial statements
Adjustments Impact : Gain/(Loss)
Prior Period Exoenses

Earlier Year Mat Adjustment
Prior Period Income
Totd Conprchcanlvc Iaconc rcflectcd la proit t lou

926.62
976.2r
5.08%

674.21
727.34

.3lo/"

31-Uu-25
? la Lacr

31-Uar-23
I ln Lact

The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:
Cotti!frtng operationr

Proft/(loss) a.fter tax 2S3.OZ 2OO.7Z
253.O7 200.77
253.O7 200.77

253.O7 200.77

1902800
1902800

r3.30
13.30

1902800
l 902800

10.55
10.55

{ ln Lact
31-Mar-24

I , 18,817.44

1.18,817.44

Recoaclllatloa of Otler Egulty
31-Mar-23

Other equity as per audited frnacial statements 52,799.82
Prior Period Exoenses FY 2023-24
. Earlier Year Mat Adjustment
Totd Comprchenrive lucome re0ected in Other Equfty s2,799.82

421 Scgncnt Rcportlng :-
In accordance with Accounting Standard Ind AS 108 "Operating Segment", the company's business activity
falls within a single segment viz. "Biomedical Waste Mangement & Disposd", and the services are rendered
only in the domestic market hence Segment reporting not applicable

r *o.
1 1 0554W



SUS WATER GRACE IEDIWASTE UAITAGEUETT PRI1IATE LIMTED
Noter to financial ttatcnerrtr for the year cndcd 3lrt trrch 2Ulrl

43! Falr velue nearurcment
The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument coulcl be

exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale'

Th.followinemethodsandassumotionswereusedtoestimatethefairvalues:
l) Fair value ofcurrent assets which incudes loans given, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and other

financial assets approximate their carrying arnounts largely due to short term maturities of these instruments'

2) Financial instmments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such

as interest rates and individual credit worthiness of the counterparty. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken

to account for expected losses of these receivables. Accordingly, fair value of such instruments is not materially

different from their carrying amounts.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instmments by

valuation technique:
Level l:

euoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

l*vel 2;
other techniques for which major inputs which have a Material efrect on the recorded fair value are observable, either

directly or indirectlY.
Level 3:

Techniques which use inputs that have a Material effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable

market data (Unobservable input data). 
t h Lacr

Flaanclal A..ct! &
Liabllltler ac at 31rt
farch,2O25

l{on Current Currerrt Totd Fatr Veluc
thlowb
Prof,t &

Falr Velue
through {rcI

Crrrlcd rt
aEortlrcd

Cort

Totrl
Aooult

Eianncld /lrrett
Trade Receivable 357.98 357.98 357.98 357.98

Cash & cash Equivalents 115.58 115.58 I 15.58 115.58

Bank balanace other than (ii) above r0.84 10.84 10.84 10.84

Other linancial assets 9.24 l.l1 10.39 10.39 10.39

Total 9.24 48s.50 494.79 494.79 494.79

Flnancld Llebllltlcr
Borrorvings

Other Financial Liabilities 142.51 142.51 t42.51 142.51

22.67 22.67 22.67 22.67

Total 165. l8 r65.18 165. l 8 165.18

{ la Lact
lfotr CurrGlt Currcnt Totd Fair Vduc

throo!h
Profit t

Fair Vrloe
thlougb OCI

Cerrlcd rt
rEodlr.d

Cort

Total

^nourt
Financid Alsct
Trade Receivable 2ao.20 2ao.20 280.20 280.20

Cash & cash Equivalents 87.36 87.36 87.36 87.36

Bank bal,anace other than (ii) above 15.44 15.44 15.44 r5_44

Other financial assets 9.01 I l.l I 20.12 20.r2 20.12

Total 9.01 394.10 403.t2 403.12 403.12

Elnanclal Lieblllticr
Borrowings
Other Financial Liabiilties 130.20 130.20 130.20 130.20

Trade payables r0.30 r0.30 10.30 10.30

Totel 140.49 140.49 140.49 t40.49

a)
-l

t

//d

Assets
ar at 31rt



aMEWATERGRACEuEDIwAaTEUAIIAoE}IENTPRTVATELIMITED
Noter to flaanclal rtateocntt for thc ycar Gndcd 31rt March 2O25

44| The Follorrlngr .tc enalvtlcd ratlo for tho vcat

No
.t Ratio

Assets Current

Numcrator Dcaomlnator Currcnt Pcrlod Prevlour
Pcrlod

o/o

Variaacc
Reasoa for Variance

987,65 247.t8 4.OO 3.43 L60/o Current Ratio increased due to repa5ment of
loans(a)

926.62 Oo/o Debt-Equity Ratio decreased due to repayment
of all loan(b)

Debt
O"/"

Ic)
(PAT + Interest + Non Items + [,oss (Profit) on

sale offixed assets /
fuxterest

Total lnstallment including

Ratioon 2s3,O7 800.41 32o/o 36% -4o/o

Due Increase in Accmulated Profits(d)

turnover ratio
of sold

turnover ratio
accountssales

turnover ratio
accounts

47.55 25.37 1.87 4.62 -59o/o Inventory turnover ratio increased due to sale
of old stock.(e)

69s.20 319.O9 2.18 2.t3 2o/o

Due to Recovery from Debtors(0

187.21 16.48 1 1.36 8.89 29o/u
(e)

turnover ratio 69s.20 740.47 o.94 1.32 -29o/o

Due to increase in Loans Given(h)

ratio 253.O7 695.20 36/o 29'/o 8o/o
(i)

Tax Value of Sales &
on 256.13 780.50 33o/o 35% -2o/o

& Exceptional ltem / (Totat Assets - Current

Return on investment
Profit

NA NA NA NA NA
(k)

Partlcular
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45| A rcconcllletloa of thc lncome ter crpcnrce to thc atrourt computcd ty app$ag thc etatutory lncomc tar
ratc to the profrt bcforc lacome tareg ls rummarlzcd bclos:

31-lf,sr-2S
{ ln Lacr

3l-U,ar-24
{ ln Lacg

Tar koclre:
Profit Bcforc Tar
Other comprehensive income before tax
Total comprehensive income before tax
Indian Statutory Income Tax Rate
Drpccted lacomc Ta.r Elpcnrcr
Tar Elfect of a{luetmoatr to teconclle crpected llcouc Tar Erpeanea
Tax Effect of Non Deductible expenses
Tax Effect of Deductions under section 8OIA
Deduction u/s 80.JJAA
Re-statement of earlier year DTA due to change in tax rate
Bonus payable considered as allowable expenditure in ITR
Earlier Year Tax
Other adjustments
Total lncomc ter cxpcnrc rccogn&Gd ln ProBt & Iog
a) Tax on normal income recognised in profit and loss
b) Tax on other comprehensive income recognised in profit and loss
Totd tar tccogntrcd in profit arrd los.

2s5. r 5
-o.89

200.42
0.50

254.26
26.OOo/o

66.11

200.92
26.OOo/o

5.2.24

0.35
(66.04) (s1.43)

(o.4o)

1.44 -0.09
p.2s)

r.85 o.07
2.OA (o.s4)
(0.23) 0.1s
r.85 lo.2ol

46) Dteclorurer for rome of tho k€y dbclocure requltcacnt for leoce lnvotsee dtrclodng atrounta rel,etlng to
thc reporting pertod for the followlng ltcar :

{ ln kce
Particnlar w 202+25 Fv 2023-24

i) Depretiation Charged on right ofAssets 0.ol 0.15
ii) Interest Expense on Irase Liabilitv 0.19 o.22
iii) Interest Income recognized on Security Deposite Given under lease
iv) Carrine Value of Rieht to use of Assets at tle end of the reporting Pr 0.oo 0.01
v) Maturity Analysis of lease liability at the end of reporting period

23-24 1.89
24-25 1.58 1.58
25-26 r.24 1.24

26-27 o.87 o.87
27-28 0.45 0.45
28-29
Total Amout of lease liability at the end of the year 4.14 6.03

471 Pafi balances are subject to conlirmation and the balances shown under Trade Receivables, Trade Payables,

Lpan and advances have approximately the same realisable value as shown in the financials.

'tEf company is not required to spent 0n cSR Exfnditure as the companl is not 
ryalified fOt any Of the fgllOWtng

criteria stipulated per provision of section 135 of the Companies Act.

a. Net worth of or more than five hundred crores rupees or
b. T\rrnover of one thousand crores rupees or more
c. Net profit of rupees five crore or more during any preceding three financial year

491 Previous year's figures have been regrouped/recasted, wherever necessary

50f The Company has not traded or Invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currenry during tJle Financial Year,

511 C.l.F. value of Imports, Expenditures and Earnings in Foreign Currencies:

Particulars
As on 3lst

March 2025
As on 31st
March2O24

a) CIF Value of Imports
b) Expenditure in Foreign Currencies
c) Earnings in Foreign Currencies

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

, ,/t
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50f Other Statutorv Information:
i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending

against the Company for holding any Benami property.

ii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the
statutory period.

in) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person or entity, including foreign
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identilied in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneliciaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, securit5r or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

iv) The Company have not received any fund from any person or entity, including foreign entities (Funding Party)
with the understanding (whether reeorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beoeficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, securigr or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

v) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in ttre books of accourts that has
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (such as, search or survey or any other nelevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 196 1.

FOR V. K. St RA.ltA & CO For and on behalfofthe Board ofDkectors of
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. :1

cA. GALITNI
Partner (M.No. f 681
Nagpur, Dated '?l au'; zozs

GRACE
CIN

JADON

LTD
1

DIN: O69 DIN : O3272644

UDIN L5) 68t gLgtt tS?Eq Ttpo

F. t?. No.
11C634W
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SM5
BOARDS'REPORT

To
The Members

SMS Water Grace Mediwaste Management Private Limited

The Directors present their l4th Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company

together with Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31,2025.

1. COMPANY-SPECIFIC INFORMATION:

SMS Water i Grace Mediwaste Management Private Limited. (CN:

U52100MH2OLIPTC213382) is a Private Limited categorized as Non-govt. company

registered under the Companies Act, 1956. It was incorporated on 22"d February 2011

having its registered office at20 IT Park Gayatri Nagar, Parsodi, Ranapratap Nagar, Nagpur,

Maharashtra, India, 440022. The Company is a Subsidiary of SMS Envocare Limited. It is

formed as Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) for taking up work in the field of providing

biomedical waste management & disposal service having its bio-medical waste treatment

plant at 313, Kha Gram Bindowa, Tehsil Mohanlalganj, Lucknow. The Company has the

expertise of providing total solutions for scientific treatment & disposal of various type of
bio medical waste by the latest Eco-friendly technologies..

1.1 FINANCIAL SUMMARY / HIGHLIGHTS:

The standalone financial statements for the financial year ended 3l't March 2025

have beeh prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) as

notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.
(Amount in Rs.)

Registered & Corporate Office: 20, lT Park, Gayatri Nagar, Parsodi, Rana Pratap Nagar, Nagpur- 440022

Ph.: +91-712- 7125000, Email: ankur,verma@smsl.co.in Web: www.smslucknowbmw.co.in

SMs WATER ERAEE
MEDIWASTE MANAGEMENT PW. LTD,

CIN No. : U52100MH2011PTC213882

Page r

Particulars 31't March 2025 3lstMarch 2024

Revenue from Operation 6,95,20,259 7,04,44,578

Other Income 34,71,329 18,07,498

Profit Before Depreciation, Finance Cost,

Exceptional Items and Tax Expenses

2,66,06,767 2,09r20,167

Less : Depreciatio nl Amortization/

Impairment Expenses

9,93,486 8,56,624

Zess.' Finance Charges 98,388 22,021

Add: Exceptional Items 00.00 00.00

Profit Before Tax Expenses 2,F5r14,893 2,$0,41,522

Less: Tdx Expenses (Current &Deferred) 2,08,005 (35,943)
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Previous year's fig3tres ltcpe been regrouped irecast wlrcrever trccess'ar)) as Per IND AS +Bracket indicates

Negttite l:'igures.

During the year under review, the Company achieved a turnover of Rs. 6,95,20,259

as against Rs 7 ,04,44,578 in 2023-24.

1.2 Amount. if anv. which the Board noses to carrv to reserves

.D

I

During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company has decided not

to transfer any amount to the Reserves for the F .Y .2024-25.

However, an amount of Rs. 2,53,06,888 l-,being the balance of the profit after tax, has

been carried to the Balance Sheet as surplus.

1.3. Dividend:

During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company, aftel

considering holistically the relevant circumstances, has decided that it would be

prudent not to recommend any dividend for the F.Y.2024-25.

1.4. Maior Events Occurred During the Year:

The state of affairs of the Company shall inter alia, include the following

information.

(i) Segment-wise position of a business and its operations:

The company is private limited company incorporated on22"d February 2011 under

companies act 1956.It is a Subsidiary of SMS Envocare Limited. It was formed as a

Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) for taking up work/project in the field of Bio-Medical
Waste Management at Lucknow city.

Total Profit for the Year (1) 2,53,06,888 2,00,77,465

Total other Comprehensive Income

Year (2)

for the (66,018) 37,300

Total (l+2) 2,52r40r870 2r0lrl4r765

Share Premium Account (1) 00.00 00.00

Balance of Profit/ Loss For Earlier Year (2) 4,92,73,974 2,91,96,449

Iess.' Dividend paid on Equity Shares 00.00 00.00

Transfer to Reserves (3) 00.00 00.00

Amount Transfer to Balance Sheet (4) 2,53,06,888 2,00,77,465

Closing Balance of Retained Earning

(l+2+3+4)

7,35,80,802 4r82,731914

Page z
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The Company is serving to the 1520 private hospitals and 80 government hospitals.

Facility is treating and disposing the biomedical waste as per its categorization.

Facility has Incinerator, Autoclave, Chemical disinfection and shredding facility for

biomedical waste treatment. Beside this facility also have Effluent treatment plant for

effective management of effluent from incineration operation, vehicle washing

facility, [hemical disinfection & autoclave operations. The Company is providing

waste collection service to more than 1600 health care facilities and approx. 25000

nos of beds, and also providing training and awareness programs for biomedical waste

handling for HCU employees. The Company is proving services for provision of

waste bags and containers & PPEs for management of biomedical waste. The Plant

has installed incineration facility with online monitoring system and compliant to

biomedical waste Rules 2016.

The Common Bio Waste Treatment Facility has Incinerator, Autoclave, Chemical

disinfection and shredding facility for biomedical waste treatment.

As per Note 42 of the Financial Statements for the F.Y. 2024-25, 'As the Company's

business activity falls within a single segment viz. " Bio-Medical Waste Disposal

Services'l, and the services are rendered only in the domestic market, hence the

disclosure requirements of IND AS 108. "Operating Segements", issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India is not applicable.

(ii) Chanse in status of the Comnanv:

During the year under review, there were no material or significant changes in the

status of the Company.

(iii) Key busincs! deyelapnqelt:

The Company has been granted with Environmental clearance & Consent to

establishment to expand the existing CBWTF capacity of the project. Consent to

establishment was secured from UPPCB in continuation of Environmental

clearanco, Public hearing and ToR for the project.

The future outlook of the company looks good, as company is planning to set-up a

new Incinerator, Autoclave, Shredder and Chemical Disinfection Unit to increase

the plant capacity.

However, during the year 2024-25 company didn't make any key developments in
business activity and research.

Page 3
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(iv\ Chanse in Financial Year:

No changes have been made in the financial year of the company

(") Capital Expenditure Programme:

The company made a capital expenditure of Rs. 79,37,7311- for the purchase of

various tpngible fixed assets during theF -Y -2024-25.

Expenses for the following are as follows-

Sr. No Particulars Amount (Rs.)

I Plant and Equipment 18,96,550

2 Furniture and Fixtures 3,600

J Office Equipments 37,581

Total 19,37,731

(vi) Details status of ition. merser. exDanston. m and

diversification:

During the year under review, the company has not carried out any activity in relation

to acquisition, merger, expansion, modemization and diversification.

Develonments. acquisition and assisnment of material tellectual Pronertv(vii)
Riehts;

The Company has not carried out any activity for the development, acquisition

and assignment of material Intellectual Property Rights, during the financial year.

(viii) Any other event havins an imnact on the affairs of the comnanv:

There are no other material events that have occurred during the financial year,

that have,an impact on the affairs of the Company.

(b) Change in Nature of Business:

There is no other change in the nature of business of the company for the Financial

Year 2024-25.

Page 4
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(c)

Company, occurred since the of the vear and till date of the

Report:

There have been no material changes and commitments, which affect the financial

position of the company that occurred between the end of the year 2024-25 and until

the date of this Report.

1.5 Details of Revision of Financia I Statement or Board's Renort:
J

Disclosure for Voluntary Revision of Financial Statement pursuant to section 131(1)

during the financial year is not required, as the Company has not revised its financial

statement or Board's Report in the relevant financial year.

2. GENERAL INFORMATION:

The Company is a Private Limited Company Incorporate d on 22nd February 201 I under the

Companies Act 1956. Which is subsidiary of unlisted public company M/s SMS Envocare

Limited.

The Company is engaged in providing biomedical waste management & disposal service

having its bio-medical waste treatment plant at 313, Kha Gram Bindowa, Tehsil

Mohanlalganj, lucknow. The Company has the expertise of providing total solutions for
scientific treatment & disposal of various type of bio medical waste by the latest Eco-

friendly technolo gies.

The Common Bio Waste Treatment Facility has Incinerator, Autoclave, Chemical

disinfection and shredding facility for biomedical waste treatment.

3. CAPITAL AND DEBT STRUCTURE:

Any changes in the capital structure of the company during the year, including the following:

(a) change in the authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital:

During the year under review, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs.

3,00,00,000/- (Rupees Three Crore only) divided into 30,00,000 (Thirty Lacs) Equity
Shares of Rs. 10/- each.

The total Paid up share capital of the Company is Rs. 1,90,28,000/- (Rupees one Crore
Ninety Lacs Twenty Eight Thousand only), divided into 19,02,800 (Nineteen Lacs Two
Thousand Eight Hundred) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each.

Page 5
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There was no change in the share capital of the company during the year under review,

Depository System:

The Equity share of the Company are in dematerialized form with National Securities

Depository Limited and M/s. MUFG Intime India Private Limited (formerly known as

Link Intime India P\rt. Ltd)., Mumbai is its Registrar & Transfer Agent. As on 31't

March, 2025, the total paid-up capital of the Company is divided into 19,02,800 equity

shares.

The Statusiof shares held in dematerialised and physical form is given below:

(b) reclassification or sub-division of the authorised share capital;

During the financial year 2024-25, the Company has not reclassified or sub-divided its

authorisedlshare capital.

(c) reduction ofshare capital or buyback ofshares;

During the financial year 2024-25, there was no reduction of share capital or buyback

of shares in the Company.

(d) change in the capital structure resulting from restructuring;

During the financial year 2024-25, there were no restructuring carried out in the

Company and consequently, the Capital Structure of the Company remained

unchanged.

(e) change in,voting rights:

Particulars Number of % of the total shares

Shareholders Equity

Shares

Preference

Shares

Equity

Shares

Preference

Shares

Shares in
Demat Form

J 19,02,800 0 100 0

Shares

Physical

Form

ln
0 0 0 0 0

The voting rights of the Company remained unchanged during the FY 2024-25.
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3.1 Issue ofshares or other convertible securities:

During the financial year 2024-25, the Company has not issued any shares or other

convertible securities, hence there is no change in the Capital structure of the

Company.

Accordingly, the issued, subscribed and paid-up capital of the Company stands at

Rs. 1,90,28,000/- (Rupees One Crore Ninety Lacs Twenty Eight Thousand only),

divided into 19,02,800 Q.{ineteen Lacs Two Thousand Eight Hundred) Equity Shares

of Rs. l0/- each. as of 31't March 2025.

3.2 Issue of equity shares with differential rights:

During the financial year, the Company has not issued any Equity Shares with

differential rights pursuant to the provisions of section 43(a) of the Companies Act,

2013.

3.3 Issue of Sweat Equity Shares:

During the hnancial year, the Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares

pursuant to the provisions of section 54 of the Companies Act, 2013.

3.4 Details of Employee's Stock Options:

The Company has not issued any shares under the Employees Stock Options

scheme pulsuant to Rule I2(9) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules,

2014 of the Companies Act,2013.

3.5 Shares held in trust for the benefit of employees where the voting rights are not
exercised directly by the employees:

During the year under review, the Company has not given any loan to any of its
employees to purchase its shares pursuant to clause (c) to sub-section (3) of section 67,

therefore the disclosure as per Rule 16(4) of Companies (Share Capital and

Debentures) Rules, 2014 are not applicable.

3.6 Issue of debentures, bonds or any non-convertible securities:

During thq year under review, the Company has not issued any debentures, bonds or
any non-convertible securities pursuant to the related provision of the Companies Act,
2013.
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3.7 Issue of warrants:

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any warant pursuant to the

related provision of the Companies Act,2013.

4. CREDIT RATING OF SECURITIES:

The credit rating is a financial indicator to potential investors of debt securities such as

bonds. During the year, under review, the Company has not issued any debt securities, so the

credit rating of securities does not apply to said company.

5. INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF):

There was no ur]rornt liable or due to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection

Funds during the year under review.

6. MANAGEMENT

6.1 Directors And Key Manaserial Personnel (KMP):

The present Composition of the Board of Directors of the Company comprises Three

Directors:

Executive Director:

NIL

Non-Executive Director

1. Mr. Kishore Malviya, Director.
2. Mr. Aditya Nilawar, Director.
3. Mr. Prabal Pratap Singh Jadon, Director

Non-Executive Director Independent Director.

NIL

INDUCTIONS, RETIREMENT, RESIGNATIONS AND CESSATION:

Page 8
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(a)

Managerial Personnel of the Companv:

(i) during the vear under review:

No person is appointed or ceases to be a director and/or Key Managerial Personnel

of the Company, hence the clause is not applicable.

(ii) after the end of the year and unto the date of the Reoort:

No person is appointed or ceases to be a director and/or Key Managerial Personnel

of the Company, hence the clause is not applicable.

(b) Modts of such appointme

During the year under review or after the end of the year and upto the date of the report,

since no person is appointed or ceases to be a director andlor Key Managerial Personnel

of the Company, the mode of appointment/ cessation is not applicable.

(c)

Meeting

In accordance with the provisions of the Act and Articles of Association of the

Company, Mr. Aditya Amit Nilawar (DIN:- 07671777),Director, is liable to retire by

rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company and is eligible for re-

appointment.

6.2 Independent Directors:

Pursuant to provision of section 149 (a) of the Companies Act 2013 in case of any of the

class or classes of the public Company i.e the following class of Companies which pursuant

to Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, must

have at least 2 directors as independent directors:

o Public companies with paid-up share capital of Rs.10 crore or more.
. Public companies with a turnover of Rs. 100 crore or more.
o Public companies with aggregate outstanding loans, debentures, and deposits,

exceeding Rs.50 crore.

However, the Company is a subsidiary of a public Company, but not a Wholly-owned
Subsidiary, the provisions of section 149 (4) read with sub-rule I of Rule 4 of the

Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 Chapter XI are not

Page 9
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6.3

applicable to the Company, therefore during the year under review none of the Independent

Director/s were appointed or re-appointed pursuant to the provisions of Section 149(\ of

the Companies Act 2013.

Conductl

During the financial year 2024-25 under review, the provisions of Section 149(4) of the

Companies Act 2Ol3 read with Rules made thereunder, towards the appointment of
Independent Director and statement of declaration thereof are not applicable to the

Company.

6.4. Board eetinss:

The Board of Directors met Seven times during the Financial Year 2024-25 i.e. on 13th April

2024,23'd July, 2024, 10th August 2024,24th September 2024,29th October 2024, 3'd

February 2025 and l't March 2025.

The 13th Annual General Meeting for the F.Y . 2023-2024 was held on 3Oth September 2024.

Table 1: Details of the Meeting of the Board of Directors

S.No Name of the Director No. of Board Meetings during F.Y.2024-
25

entitled to attend attended

1 Mr. Kishore Malviya 07 07

2 Mr. Aditya Nilawar 07 07

J Mr. Prabal Pratap Singh Jadon 07 02

The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the

Companies Act,r20l3.

6.5. Committee:

During the year under review, the prescribed provisions u/s 135, 177, 778 of Companies Act,

2013 and Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 regardrng

constitution of Committees viz. Audit Committee, CSR Committee and Nomination and

remuneration Committee or any other Committees is not applicable to the Company.

6.6. Recommendations of the Audit Committee:

The provisions of Section \77 of the Companies read with Rule 6 of the Companies

(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the Company. Hence, the
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Company is not required to constitute an Audit Committee. Hence a recommendation of the

Audit Committee is also not applicable to the Company.

6.7. ComDanYts Pollcy on Directors ' aooointment and remuneration:

During the Financial Year 2024-25 clause (e) of Sub-section (3) of Section 134 read with sub

section (a) of Section 178, "Company's policy on Directors' appointment and remuneration

including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a

director and other matters provided under sub-section (3) of section 178, is not applicable to

the Company.

6.8. Board Evaluation:

Pursuant to rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 of the Companies Act 2013, the

Company is not required to include a statement indicating the manner in which formal annual

evaluation has been made by the Board of its own performance and that of its committees and

individual directors. Hence during the Financial Year 2024-25, the requirement under section
i

134 subsection (3) clause (p) of the Companies Act, 2013 for annual evaluation of the

performance of the Board, its Committees and of individual Directors is not required.

6.9 Remuneration of Directors and Employee's of Listed Companies:

The Company being a subsidiary of an unlisted Public Company namely SMS Envocare

Limited, provision pursuant to section 197(12) and Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment

And Remuneration) Rules, 2014 of the Companies Act, 2013 respect to disclosure in the

Board's Report relating to the ration of the remuneration of each director to median

employee's remuneration are not applicable.

6.10 Remuneration received bv Manaeine/ Whole Time Director from Holdine or
Subsidiary Company:

J

The Company is not required to appoint a Managing Director/ Whole Time Director pursuant
to the requirement of section 196 of the Companies Act 2013. Therefore, the disclosure under
the provision of Section 197(14) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rules made

thereunder, towards receipt of any commission or remuneration by a Managing Director/
Whole Time Directors from a holding or subsidiary company is not required.

6.11. Director's resDonsibilitv statement:

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 134 (3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of
Directors to the best of their knowledge and ability, confirm that:
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in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year 2024-25, the

applicable accounting standards have been followed and there are no material

departures;

the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently

and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a

true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial

year and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period;

the directors have taken proper and sufficient care to the best of their knowledge and

ability for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the

provisions of the Act. They confirm that there are adequate systems and controls for

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and

other irregularities;

the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

the Company being unlisted, sub-clause (e) section 134 (5) as referred in clause (c)

of section 134 (3) of the Companies Act,2013 pertaining to following of internal

financial control and it's adequacy and effective operation is not applicable.

they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

6.12, Internal Financial C trol and its Adeq uacY:

The Company has in all material respects, adequate intemal financial control with reference

to financial statements commensurate with the nature of its business, size and complexity of
its operations. Intemal financial control systems comprising policies and procedures are

designed to ensure the liability of financial reporting. These controls also ensure the

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and financial statements.

6.13. Details of Fraud Report by Auditor:

Pursuant to the provision of sub-section (12) of Section 143 with respect to reporting of fraud

other than those which are reportable to the Central Government, No Fraud was reported by

the auditor during the Financial Year 2024-25.

7. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY. JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATE COMPANY:

During the year under review, no company became/ceased to be a subsidiary/ associate/

joint venture of the Company. Also, the Company did not become apart of any joint venture

during the year.

Moreover, at the end of the year under review and also as on the date of this report, the

Company does not have any subsidiary and/or associate company, and the Company is also

not a part of any joint ventures.

a.

b.

c

d.

e.

f.

Page rz



Boaril's Report EY 2024-25

SMS Water Grace Mediwaste Management Prtaatu Limited.

8. DETAILS OF DEPOSIT:

During the financial year 2024-25 under review, the Company has neither invited nor

accepted any public deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 and74 of the Companies

Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014. As such, no specific

details prescribefl in Rule 8(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014 (As amended) are

required to be given or provided.

9. PARTICULARS OF LOANS. GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees, if any, are given in Note 12 to the Audited Financial

Statements of the Company.

Since the Company is engaged in the business of providing infrastructural facilities as per

Section l36 (11) read with Schedule VI of the Act. Accordingly, disclosures under Section

186 of the Act in respect of a loan made, guarantees given or security provided is not

applicable to the Company.

However, the Company has not made any Investment nor provided any securities during the

period under revlew.

10. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH
RELATED PARTIES:

All Related Party Transactions entered during the financial year were in compliance with the

requirement of the Companies Act,2013 and the Rules framed thereunder and were in the

ordinary course of the business of the Company and were on an arm's length basis. There

were no materially significant related party transactions entered by the Company during the

year with the Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other persons, which may

have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company.

However, the disclosure of tlansactions with the related party for the year, as per Indian
Accounting Standards -24 is given inNote no 36 to the Balance Sheet as on 31't March
2025. I

There are no material contracts or arrangements or transactions to be reported in Form
AOC-2 in terms of Section 134 of the Act read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
Thus, disclosure in Form AOC-2 is not required.

Page r3

I



B o ard' s Report EY 2024-25

SMS Water Grace Medizoaste Management Piaate Limiteil.

11. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

The Company is not required to constitute Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as it

does not fall within the purview of Section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence it

is not required to formulate policy on Corporate Social Responsibility.

t2 THE CONSERVATION OF ENERGY. TECHNOLOGY BSORPTION AND

a

GE

(A) Conservation of energy:

The Company lays great emphasis on savings in the cost of energy consumption.

Achieving a reduction in the per unit consumption of energy is an ongoing exercise

in the Company. Effective measures have been taken to minimize the loss of energy

as far as possible.

(B) Technology absorption:

The Company continues to use the latest technologies for improving the productivity

and quality of its services. The Company's operations do not require significant

import of technology. However the Company implemented barcode scanning & data

uploading services related to bio-medical waste received from health care facilities
(HCF).

(C) Foreign bxchange earnings and Outgo:

There are no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the financial year.

13. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Risk Management is the process of identification, assessment and priorittzation of risks

followed by coordinated efforts to minimize, monitor and mitigate/control the probability

and/or impact of unfortunate events or to maximise the realization of opportunities. The

Company has laid down a comprehensive Risk Assessment and Minimization Procedure,

which is reviewed by the Board from time to time. The Directors themselves periodically
assess risks in the internal and external environment as also elements of risk, if any, which
may threaten the existence of the company.

However pursuant to the provision of section 13a(3)(n) of the Companies Act, 2013, the

Company doeslnot have a Risk Management policy in place as the elements of risk
threatening the Company's existence are very minimal.

14. DETAILS OF ESTABL OF VIGIL MECHANISM:

The provisions under Section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act,2013 and Rule 7 of The
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, towards the establishment of
'Vigil Mechanism' are not applicable to the Company.
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16.

ORDERS BY THE REG TORS:

During the year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by the

Regulators, Courts or Tribunals, Statutory and quasi-judicial bodies, impacting the going

concem status and the Company's and its future operations.

AUDITOR AND THEIR REPORTS:

Statutorv Auditors:

M/s. V. K. Surana & Co., Chartered Accountants, (FRN. 110634W) Nagpur was appointed

as Auditors of the Company, for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years, at the Annual General

Meeting held on 29th September 2022. to hold office from the conclusion of the I 1th Annual

General Meeting till the conclusion of the l6th Annual General Meeting to be held for the

financial year 2026-2027 .

As per the existing appointment of M/s. V. K. Surana & Co., Chartered Accountants,

(FRN-I10634W), their remaining audit period covers 2 years of their appointment up to the

conclusion of the 16th Annual General Meeting to be held in the financial year 2026-27.

Cost Auditor:

The Company does not come under the criteria of cost records as specified by the Central

Government under Sub-Section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and

accordingly, no such accounts and records are required to be made and maintained by the

Company. t

Secretarial Auditor:

During the year under review, pursuant to the provision of Section 204 of the Companies Act,

2013 and rules made thereunder if any, the Company was not required to appoint a

Sercretarial Auditor.

During the year under review, as the Secretarial Audit is not applicable, the requirement

pursuant to Section 134 (3) (0 (ii) for explanation or comments by the Board on the

Secretarial Audit Report does not apply to the Company.

18. EXPLANATIONS IN RESPONSE AUDITORS' OUALIFICATIONS :

a) The Auditors' Report:

The observations of V. K. Surana & Co, Statutory Auditors, when read together with
the relevant notes to the accounts and accounting policies are self-explanatory and

there are no qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimers made by

Statutory Auditors, in their Report dated 7th August 2025.
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19. COMPLIAN WITH SECRETARIAL TANDARDS:

The Board of Directors confirns that during the year under review, the Company has

complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India with respect to meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1), on General
Meetings (SS-2).

20. CORPORATE INSO VENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS TED UNDER THE
CY AND 2016

No Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process was initiated by the Company during the
financial year 2024-25, hence, the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process initiated under
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC) is not applicable to the Company.

2I. FAILURE TO ANY CORPO TE ACTION:

The Company has not failed to complete or implement any corporate action between the end
of the Financial Year to which this Financial Statement relates i.e. 2024-25 and the date of
this Report.

)) ANNUAL RETURN:

Pursuant to notification no G.S.R. 159(E) dated 0510312021 and as per the provisions of
Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013, and rule 12 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, a copy of the annual return shall be filed in E-Form MGT-7
with the Registrar with such fees as specified in the act.

23. WEB L OF ANNUAL TURN:

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act,2013 a copy of the Annual Return for the
financial year ended March 31,2025, has been placed on the website of the Company at:
www.smslucknowbm*'. co. in.

24. D URE AS PER HARAS SMENT OF WOMEN AT W
ON ON RE 2013

The Company has in place a policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual
harassment at the workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2Ol3 andthe rules framed there
under. 

t

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed of
during the financial year 2024-25:
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Details of Sexual Harassment cases are following:

25. THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION M E OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING

Sr.

no.

Particulars

1 Number of Sexual Harassment Complaints received NIL
2. Number of Sexual Harassment Complaints disposed off NIL
J Number of Sexual Harassment Complaints pending beyond 90

days.

NIL

UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND UPTCY CODE. 2016 GI OF 20T6)

DURING THE YEAR ALONGWITH STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR

No application has been made under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code; hence the
requirement to disclose the details of application made or any proceeding pending under the

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the year alongwith their status

as at the end of the financial year is not applicable;

26. THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION
DONE AT THE OF ONE-TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION
DONE WHILE T G LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS ALONG THE REASONS THEREOF

The Company has not entered into a one-time settlement with the banks or financial
institutions for any of the loans availed by the Company. Hence the requirement to disclose
the details of the difference between the amount of the valuation done at the time of one-
time settlement 

rand 
the valuation done while taking a loan from the Banks or Financial

Institutions along with the reasons thereof is not required.

27. A STA BY THE COMPANY RESPECT TO THE COMPLIANCE
OF THE PRO VISIONS RELA TING TO THE MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT 1961.

The Maternity Benefit Act is applicable to the factories, mines, plantations, shops, and
establishments employing 10 or more person.

During the year under review. The provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 apply to
establishments employing women workers. However, since the company presently has no
women employees on its rolls, the question of extending maternity benefits does not arise at
this stage.

I

Nevertheless, the company remains fully compliant with the provisions of the Act and shall
extend maternity benefits as and when any woman employee is engaged in the future, in
accordance with statutory requirements.
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